BOARD OF EDUCATION
Ms. Jane Royer Barr

Ms. Rose Filicetti
Santa Cruz County Ms. Sandra Nichols
Office of Education Ms. Sue Roth

Mr. Dana M. Sales
Mr. Abel Sanchez
Mr. Bruce Van Allen

Santa Cruz County Board of Education Regular Board Meeting
Santa Cruz County Office of Education September 20, 2018
400 Encinal Street Time: 4:00 p.m.

Santa Cruz, CA 95060 Board Room

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

Updated: September 20, 2018
AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL AND ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM

Bruce Van Allen (President), Jane Royer Barr, Rose Filicetti, Sandra Nichols, Sue Roth,
Dana Sales, Abel Sanchez
Michael Watkins, Secretary

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Bruce Van Allen (President) will lead the Pledge of Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Agenda deletions and/or changes of sequence will be approved or the agenda will be approved as
submitted.

PUBLIC COMMENT

This is an opportunity for the public to address the Board regarding items not on the agenda. The
Board President will recognize any member of the audience not previously placed on the agenda
who wishes to speak on a matter directly related to school business. Each speaker, on any
specific topic, may speak up to three (3) minutes unless otherwise limited or extended by the
President. The President may allot time to those wishing to speak but no action will be taken on
matters presented (E.C. Section 35145.5). If appropriate, the President, or any Member of the
Board, may direct that a matter be referred to the Superintendent’s Office for placement on a
future agenda. Please refer to item, Please Note, on the last page of this agenda.

CONSENT AGENDA

All items appearing on the consent agenda are recommended actions, which are considered to be
routine in nature and will be acted upon as one motion. Specific items may be removed for
separate consideration. Item(s) removed will be considered immediately following the consent
agenda motion as Deferred Consent Items.

5.0.1 Minutes of the Board Meeting held on August 16, 2018

5.0.2 Routine Budget Revisions

5.0.3 Treasurer’s Quarterly Investment Report, Quarter Ended June 30, 2018
5.0.4 Donations



Santa Cruz County Board of Education Page 2
Agenda, Regular Meeting
September 20, 2018

6.0

7.0

5.1 DEFERRED CONSENT ITEMS (if required)
This item is placed on the agenda to address any items that might be pulled from Agenda
Item 5.0 for further discussion/consideration if so determined.

CORRESPONDENCE

Correspondence will be available for review at the meeting location.

PUBLIC HEARINGS/NEW BUSINESS AND ACTION ITEMS

7.1

7.2

7.3

1.4

Public Hearing: Inteqrative Leadership Academy (ILA)

The Board will conduct a Public Hearing to solicit input from members of the public
regarding the creation of a charter school in San Lorenzo Valley (Integrative Leadership
Academy).

Open Public Hearing: Bruce Van Allen (President)
Conduct Public Hearing: Bruce Van Allen (President)
Close Public Hearing: Bruce Van Allen (President)

Public Hearing: Sufficiency of Instructional Materials

The Board will conduct a Public Hearing to solicit input from members of the public
regarding the Sufficiency of Instructional Materials to be used by the Santa Cruz County
Office of Education Alternative Education Student Programs during the 2018-19 school
year.

Presenter: Adam Wade

Open Public Hearing: Bruce Van Allen (President)
Conduct Public Hearing: Bruce Van Allen (President)
Close Public Hearing: Bruce Van Allen (President)

Adopt Resolution #18-12: Sufficiency of Instructional Materials

In order to be eligible to receive instructional materials funding, the governing board is
required to hold a public hearing and adopt a resolution stating whether or not each pupil
in County Office of Education programs has sufficient standards aligned textbooks and/or
instructional materials in specified subjects.

Call for Motion and Roll Call Vote: Bruce Van Allen (President)

Public Hearing: Career Advancement Charter School Charter Revision

The Board will conduct a Public Hearing to solicit input from members of the public
regarding the addition of two additional educational sites for the Career Advancement
Charter School.

Open Public Hearing: Bruce Van Allen (President)
Conduct Public Hearing: Bruce Van Allen (President)
Close Public Hearing: Bruce Van Allen (President)

2



Santa Cruz County Board of Education Page 3
Agenda, Regular Meeting
September 20, 2018

8.0

9.0

10.0

11.0

12.0

13.0

7.5

7.6

7.7

Adopt Resolution #18-13: Career Advancement Charter School Charter Revision

The Board will be asked to adopt Resolution #18-13 to approve the Career Advancement
Charter School revision of adding two additional educational sites to the Charter.

Call for Motion and Roll Call Vote: Bruce Van Allen (President)

Adopt Resolution #18-14: Measure H: Housing Bonds

The Board will be asked to adopt Resolution #18-14 in support of Santa Cruz County
Measure H for Housing Bonds.

Call for Motion and Roll Call Vote: Bruce Van Allen (President)

Adopt Resolution #18-15: Climate Change

The Board will be asked to adopt Resolution #18-15 in support of teaching and informing
the students of Santa Cruz County regarding climate change.

Call for Motion and Roll Call Vote: Bruce Van Allen (President)

REPORTS, DISCUSSIONS AND PRESENTATIONS

8.1

2017-18 Unaudited Closing Financial Statement

The Board is requested to review information from the annual closing financial reporting
document filed with the California Department of Education.

Presenter: Mary Hart, Deputy Superintendent, Business Services

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

SUPERINTENDENT REPORT

County Superintendent of Schools, Michael C. Watkins, will provide an update on activities and
matters of interest.

TRUSTEE REPORTS (3 minutes each)

Trustees will report on matters, events and activities as related to Board goals of: Advocating for
students, maintaining community relations and promoting student achievement.

AD HOC COMMITTEE REPORTS/ACTIONS (if any)

ADDITIONS, IF ANY, TO FUTURE BOARD AGENDA ITEMS




Santa Cruz County Board of Education Page 4
Agenda, Regular Meeting
September 20, 2018

14.0

SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS AND COMING EVENTS

September 27, 2018
7:45 a.m.

October 18, 2018
4:00 p.m.

October 25, 2018
7:45 a.m.
November 15, 2018
4:00 p.m.

December 20, 2018
4:00 p.m.

Inside Education — Early Years
Santa Cruz County Office of Education — Boardroom
400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060

Regular Meeting of the County Board of Education
400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060

Inside Education - Elementary
Santa Cruz County Office of Education — Boardroom
400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060

Regular Meeting of the County Board of Education
400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060

Regular Meeting of the County Board of Education
400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060

150 ADJOURNMENT

The Board President will adjourn the meeting.

PLEASE NOTE:

Public Participation:

All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz County Board of Education. If you wish to
speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting as any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the
agenda. Persons wishing to address the Board are asked to state their name for the record. The president of the Board will establish a time limit of
three (3) minutes, unless otherwise stated by the president, for comments from the public. Consideration of all matters is conducted in open session
except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be considered in closed session. Expulsion appeal
hearings are heard in closed session unless a request for hearing in open session is made by the appellant.

Backup Documentation:

Any writings or documents that are public records and are provided to a majority of the governing board regarding an open session item on this agenda
will be made available for public inspection in the County Office of Education, located 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060, during normal
business hours.

Translation Requests:

Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis. Please make advance arrangements with Jim Guss by telephone at (831) 466-5900.
Traducciones del inglés al espafiol y del espafiol al inglés estan disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva. Por favor haga arreglos por anticipado
con Jim Guss por teléfono al numero (831) 466-5900.

ADA Compliance:

In compliance with Government Code section 54954.2 (a), The Santa Cruz County Office of Education will, on request, make this agenda available in
appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec
12132), and the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. Individuals who need this agenda in an alternative format or who
need a disability-related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting should contact Jim Guss, Administrative Aide to the
Superintendent, 400 Encinal St., Santa Cruz, CA 95060, (831) 466-5900.




SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION

SUBJECT:

Consent Agenda: Regular Board Meeting Minutes, August 16, 2018
DEPARTMENT/PROGRAM:

Santa Cruz County Board of Education

ACTION REQUESTED:

Board Approval

PREVIOUS STAFF/BOARD ACTION:

None

BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND/OR STATEMENT OF NEED:

Consent Agenda items are recommended for approval as actions routine in nature and acted upon
as one motion. Specific items may be removed for separate consideration.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:
None
CONTACT PERSON(S):

Michael Watkins, Superintendent
Jim Guss, Administrative Aide to the Superintendent

September 20, 2018 Agenda Item #5.0.1



BOARD OF EDUCATION
Ms. Jane Royer Barr

Ms. Rose Filicetti
Sant_a Cruz Coun_ty Ms. Sandra Nichols
Office of Education Ms. Sue Roth

Mr. Dana M. Sales
Mr. Abel Sanchez
Mr. Bruce Van Allen

Santa Cruz County Board of Education Regular Board Meeting
Santa Cruz County Office of Education August 16, 2018

400 Encinal Street Time: 4:00 p.m.

Santa Cruz, CA 95060 Tech Center/Board Room

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

UNAPPROVED MINUTES

CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL AND ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM

Board Present Staff Present

Bruce Van Allen (President) Faris Sabbah

Jane Barr Mary Hart

Sandra Nichols Jivan Dhaliwal

Sue Roth Jim Guss

Dana Sales Lauren Soukup (Legal Counsel)

Abel Sanchez
Michael Watkins (Secretary)

Board Absent
Rose Filicetti (Late)

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Bruce Van Allen (President) led the Pledge of Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

It was M.S.C (Sanchez/Barr) to approve the Agenda.

Ayes: Barr, Nichols, Roth, Sales, Sanchez, Van Allen
Nays: None

Abstain: None

Absent: Filicetti

PUBLIC COMMENT

Ms. Nicky Ramos-Beban, Executive Director, Integrative Leadership Academy (ILA), came
before the Board to officially appeal the denial by the San Lorenzo Valley Unified School District
for ILA to open a charter school in San Lorenzo Valley.

CONSENT AGENDA

5.0.1 Minutes of the Special Board Meeting held on July 19, 2018
5.0.2 Minutes of the Board Meeting held on July 19, 2018

5.0.3 Routine Budget Revisions

5.0.4 Donations



Santa Cruz County Board of Education Page 2
Regular Board Meeting
August 16, 2018

6.0

7.0

8.0

It was M.S.C. (Barr/Sales) to approve the Consent Agenda.

Ayes: Barr, Roth, Sales, Sanchez, VVan Allen
Nays: None

Abstain: Nichols

Absent: Filicetti

5.1 DEFERRED CONSENT ITEMS (if required)

None.

CORRESPONDENCE

None.

RECOGNITION

The Board recognized Jim Howes, Assistant Director, Career Technical Education Partnership
(CTEP) for his over 19 years of service to the Santa Cruz County Office of Education in CTEP.

Trustee Filicetti arrived at 4:06 p.m.

PUBLIC HEARINGS/NEW BUSINESS AND ACTION ITEMS

8.1 Watsonville Prep School (Resolution 18-10 or Resolution 18-11)

Introduction of Item by Board President

Bruce Van Allen (President) introduced Item 8.1 to the Board by explaining the process
by which the Item would be presented to the Board.

Overview of the Review Process

Superintendent Watkins gave the Board an overview of the review process that was
completed by the Santa Cruz County Office of Education Charter Review Team.

Legal Requirements, Additional Considerations, Findings of Fact, Staff Recommendation

Loren Soukup, Senior Associate General Counsel, School & College Legal Services of
California presented to the Board the legal requirements for the review of the charter
petition. Ms. Soukup discussed how she assisted the Charter Review Team and the
process that was followed to complete the review.

Ms. Soukup continued her presentation to the Board by discussing the “Additional
Considerations” found by the Charter Review Team: Transportation, Conflict of Interest,
Financial Accounting and English Language Learner (ELL) Assessments. She also
presented to the Board the four Findings of Fact from the Charter Review Team (Local
Parent/Community involvement in governance; Transitional Kindergarten; Services for
English Language Learners; and Facilities.



Santa Cruz County Board of Education Page 3
Regular Board Meeting
August 16, 2018

Ms. Soukup completed her presentation to the Board by stating that the Charter Review
Team’s recommendation to the Board would be to “Conditionally Approve” the Petition
made by Watsonville Prep School. She also explained the two resolutions (Resolution
18-10 and Resolution 18-11) that were being presented to the Board and their
ramifications for either approval or denial.

Approving Resolution 18-10 would be a “Conditional Approval” for the Watsonville
Prep School and approval of a proposed Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between
the Santa Cruz County Board of Education, the Santa Cruz County Superintendent of
Schools/Office of Education and Navigator Schools operating as Watsonville Prep
School.

Approving Resolution 18-11 would deny the Petition, as the Petition does not contain
reasonably comprehensive descriptions of all required elements of a Charter Petition as
set forth in Education Code 47605.6(b)(5).

Comments on the Charter Petition

President VVan Allen allowed Mr. Kevin Sved, CEO, Navigator Charter Schools and Ms.
Michelle Rodriguez, Superintendent, Pajaro Valley Unified School District to each give
their views/comments regarding the Petition.

President Van Allen opened the floor to allow teachers, employees, parents, guardians or
any other member of the public who desired to speak on the matter. The following
people spoke before the Board: Andrea Hernandez, Martha Denny, Lellie Castillo, Alba
Yanira Rivas, Luisa Hernandez, Guadalupe G., Marcela Salas-Ibarra, Caitrin Wright,
Kirsten Carr, Gabriela Roldan, Vanessa Castaneda, Jennifer Wildman, Crystal Toriumi,
Kimberly DeSerpa, Francisco Rodriguez, Debbie Benitez, and Laura Zucker.

Clarifying Questions

President VVan Allen opened the floor for the Board members to ask clarifying questions
of staff, legal counsel, the Petitioners or the District. The Board asked numerous
questions all of the participants.

Board Deliberations

Following the questions session, each of the Board members commented on their views
concerning the Petition.

Action

It was M.S.C. (Barr/Roth) to adopt Resolution #18-10 to “Conditionally Approve” the
Charter Petition presented by Watsonville Prep School and the attached Memorandum of
Understanding between the County Board of Education, the County Superintendent of
Schools/County Office and Watsonville Prep School with the conditions specified being
fully addressed to the satisfaction of the County Board on or before October 1, 2018.

Ayes: Barr, Roth, Sales

Nays: Filicetti, Nichols, Sanchez, VVan Allen
Abstain: None

Absent: None



Santa Cruz County Board of Education Page 4
Regular Board Meeting
August 16, 2018

9.0

10.0

12.0

The Board called a recess at 7:03 p.m.
President VVan Allen called the meeting back to order at 7:14.

It was M.S.C. (Nichols/Roth) to adopt Resolution #18-11 to deny the Charter Petition
presented by Watsonville Prep School based on the Findings of Fact and that the Petition
did not contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of all required elements of a
Charter Petition as set forth in Education Code 47605.6(b)(5).

Ayes: Filicetti, Nichols, Sanchez, Van Allen
Nays: Barr, Roth, Sales

Abstain: None

Absent: None

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

None.

SUPERINTENDENT REPORT

County Superintended of Schools, Michael Watkins, provided an update on his activities and
matters of interest since his last report on July 19, 2018.

TRUSTEE REPORTS

Trustee Van Allen attended Senator Bill Monning’s K-12 Focus Group meeting held at the COE.

Trustee Sales congratulated the four Board members who are running unopposed to retain their
seat on the Board.

Trustee Nichols announced that the People’s Democratic Club held their retreat in August and
that she has been elected as President for another term. She also attended a campaign Kickoff for
Justin Cummings will is running for Santa Cruz City Council.

Trustee Sanchez stated that he is very happy to be running unopposed (as with his fellow
Trustees) to continue his seat on the Board and that he feels very fortunate to serve along with the
rest of the Board members.

Trustee Barr advised the Board that she attend the Admin Kickoff breakfast at Seascape and was
very impressed to see the excitement each of the Districts showed in starting a brand new school
year.

Trustee Roth reported that she “survived” 11 days in the woods camping with the girl scouts.

During the month, Trustee Filicetti had lunch with Councilwoman Richelle Noroyan, MariaElena
DelaGarza, Executive Director, Community Action Board and with Dr. Deneen Guss, incoming
Superintendent of MCOE to discuss CTE and workforce development.. Trustee Filicetti attended
a Screening of “Dark Money” a film on campaign spending transparency and the free press and
also attended the Admin Kickoff with keynote speaker Dr. Trudy Arriaga, author of “Opening
Doors” a book on cultural proficiency. She also signed the Soquel Elementary School Districts
Parcel Tax Measure for the November Ballot.



Santa Cruz County Board of Education Page 5
Regular Board Meeting
August 16, 2018

13.0

14.0

15.0

16.0

AD HOC COMMITTEE REPORTS/ACTIONS

Trustee Barr advised that an ad hoc committee should be formed to discuss the Superintendent’s
(new) salary. Trustee Barr, Sales and VVan Allen agreed to be on this Committee.

ADDITIONS, IF ANY, TO FUTURE BOARD AGENDA ITEMS

None.

SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS AND COMING EVENTS

August 20, 2018
8:00 a.m.

September 6, 2018
11:00 a.m. — 1:30 p.m.

September 20, 2018
4:00 p.m.
September 27, 2018
7:45 a.m.

October 18, 2018
4:00 p.m.

October 25, 2018

7:45 a.m.

ADJOURNMENT

SCCOE Employee Orientation Meeting
Sequoia Schools

229 Green Valley Road

Freedom, CA 95019

Inside Education Kickoff Luncheon
Santa Cruz County Office of Education — Boardroom
400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060

Regular Meeting of the County Board of Education
400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060

Inside Education — Early Years
Santa Cruz County Office of Education — Boardroom
400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060

Regular Meeting of the County Board of Education
400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060

Inside Education - Elementary
Santa Cruz County Office of Education — Boardroom
400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060

Bruce Van Allen (President) adjourned the meeting at 7:30 p.m.

10



SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION

SUBJECT:

Consent Agenda: Routine Budget Revisions
DEPARTMENT/PROGRAM:

Business Services/Administration

ACTION REQUESTED:

Board Approval

PREVIOUS STAFF/BOARD Action:

None

BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND/OR STATEMENT OF NEED:
Detailed revisions and narrative follow this page.
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:

Adjusts 2018-2019 Spending Plan

CONTACT PERSON(S):

Jean Gardner, Senior Director, Fiscal Services
Rebecca Olker, Manager, Internal Business Services

September 20, 2018
11

Agenda Item #5.0.2



BCARD OF EDUCATION
Ms. Jane Royer Barr

Ms. Rose Filicetti

Ms. Sandra Nichols

Ms. Sue Roth

o | P el Mr. Dana M. Sal
anta Cruz County I, Abel Sanchez

Office of Education Mr. Bruce Van Allen

Michael C. Watkins, Superintendent « 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 85060 - 831-466-5600 « FAX 831-466-5607 » www. santacruzcoe,org

MEMO

DATE: September 20, 2018

TO: Santa Cruz County Board of Education
Michael C. Watkins, County Superintendent of Schools

FROM: Mary Hart:
Deputy Superintendent, Business Services
Jean Gardner
Senior Director of Fiscal Services

RE: August Budget Revisions

Budget revisions in August reflected an increase in projected revenues for $287,626
and an increase in expenditures in the amount of $329,805, resulting in a net decrease
to fund balance of $42,179.

The changes in budget were mostly due to the receipt of a new grant from the
Community Foundation of Santa Cruz County by our Santa Cruz County College
Commitment (S4C) department.

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact us.

MH:rao
3 attachments

CC: Rebecca Olker

12



Santa Cruz County Office of Education
Budget Variance Summary for August, 2018

Septemnber 20, 2018 Board Meeting

2018-2019 2018-19 AUGUST 2018-19
Description Adopted Budget Board Meeting 08/16/18 Unrestricted Restricted Board Meeting 09/20/18
REVENUE
Local Control Funding Formula 27,242,923 27,242 923 - - 27,242,923
Federal Revenues 7,405,876 7,405,876 - - 7,405,876
State Revenues 7,932,026 7.932,026 - - 7.932,026
Local Revenues 11,747,301 11,747,301 - 287,626 12,034,927
TOTAL REVENUE 54,328,126 54.328. 128 - 287.626 54.615,752
EXPENDITURES
Certificated Salaries 10,967,874 10,969,977 (11,906) - 10,958,071
Classified Salaries 11,221,565 11,221,565 - - 11,221,565
Employee Benefits 12,229,612 12,229,612 (520) N 12,229,092
Books and Supplies 3,356,296 3,264,683 18,939 64,186 3,347,808
Services, Other Operating Expenses 9,188,678 9,287,326 31,100 230,943 9,549,370
Capital Outlay 698,115 698,115 - B 698,115
Other Outgo 6,624,756 6,624,756 - - 6,624,756
Interprogram Support (69,269) {69,269) (26,013) 23,076 (72,206)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 54,217.627 54,226,766 11,600 318.205 54,556,571
INTERFUND TRANSFERS
Transfers In - - - - .
Transfers Qut 45,000 45,000 - - 45,000
TOTAL INTERFUND TRANSFERS 45.000 45,000 - - 45,000
FUND BALANCE
Beginning Fund Balance 22,520,871 22,520,871 - - 22,520,871
Net Increase/{Decrease) 65,499 56,360 (37,179) (5,000) 14,181
ENDING FUND BALANCE 22,586,369 22,577.230 (37.179) {5,000) 22.635.051

Pacheco Bill Compliance:

There were no individual consulting agreements in excess of $25,000 that required a budget revision during the month of August, 2018.

13




Budget Variance Detall for

August, 2018
September 20, 2018 Board Meeting
204C-19 2018-19 Variance 2018-19 2018-19
- ! Board Mesting
Description (Object Code Range) Res |Program Adopted Budget Approved 8/16/18 Linrestricted Restricted 9120118 Approved 8/20/18
REVENUE
Loca! Control Funding Formula (8010-8098) 27,242,923.00
Total Local Control Funding Formula 27,242 923.00 27,242,923.00 2 : 27,242,923.00 27,242,923.00
Federal Revenues (8100-8299) 7.405,876.00
Total Federal Revenues 7,405 B76.00 7 405 876.00 = = 7,405 B76.00 7,405,876.00
State Revenuas (8300-8559) 7.932,026.13
| Totai State Revenues 7.932,026.13 7,932,026.13 - = 7.932,076,13 7.932,026.13
Local Revenues (B600-8799) 11,747,300.77
CONTRIBUTIONS TO OUTDOOR ED SCIENCE 9010 |OTHER RESTRICTED LOCAL 12,626.00
SET LUP COMMUNITY FOUNDATION OF SANTA CRUZ CNTY BUDGET |5084 |S4C 275,000.00
Tatal Local Revenues 11,747,300.77 11,747 300.77 - 287,626.00 12,034,926.77 12,034,926.77
Cther Financing Sources {8800-B897) -
CONTRIBUTICNS TO QUTDOOR ED SCIENCE 0080 |EDUCATION & ADMIN OPERATIONS (25,579.00}
CONTRIBUTIONS TG OUTDOOR ED SCIENGE 9010 [OTHER RESTRICTED LOCAL 26,579.00
Tatal Other Financing Scurces - - {25,579.00) 25,579.00 = -
TOTAL REVENUE 54,328,125.90 54.355.125.90 (2‘5:579.00) 313,205.00 54,615,?51.90 54,616,751.90
BEGINNING FUNC BALANCE (8598} 22,620,870.72
Total Beginning Fund Balance 22,520,870.72 22,520,870.72 = E 22,620, 870.72 22,520,8¢0.72
TOTAL REVENUE PLUS BEGINNING BALANGE 76,848,996.62 76,848,096.62 (256,576.00) 313,206.00 77,136 622.62 77,136,622.62
EXPENDITURES
Certificated Salaries (1000-1999) 10,967 873.70
SET UP BUDGET FOR NEW ROP COURSES 0830 |ROC/P APPCRTIQNMENT {11,905.79)
Total Certificated Salaries 10,967,873.70 10,£89,877.06 {11,505.79) - 10,958,071.27 10,858,071.27
Classified Salaries (2000-2598) 11,221,565.40
Total Classified Salaries 11,221 565.40 11,221,565.40 - - 11,221,585.40 11,221,565.40
Employes Benefits (3000-3999) 12,229,812.37
SET UP BUDGET FOR NEW RGP COURSES 0830 [ROC/P APPCRTIONMENT 520.15]
14 1of2



Budget Varlance Detail for

Total Bocks and Supplies

3.366,295.73

3,264,682.91

18,938.84

64,185.87

August, 2018
September 20, 2018 Board Meeting
2018-18 2018-19 Vanance 2018-19 2018-19
Board Mesting
Description (Object Code Range) Res |Program Adopted Budgat Approved 816718 Unrestricted Restricted 870/18 Approved 9/20/18
Total Employee Benefits 12,229 612.37 12.228,512.37 (520.15) - 12,229,092.22 12,229,092.22
Books and Supplies (4000-499¢) 3,356,285.73
ADJUST DIRECTANDIRECT COSTS TO BALANCE 0040 [MAINTENANCE 6,000.00
ADJUST DIRECTANDIRECT COSTS TO BALANCE 0080 | OPERATIONS 11,706.00
ADJUST DIRECTANDIRECT COSTS TO BALANCE D050 |ADMINSTRATICN 8,307.00
TO COVER THE EQUITY INSTITUTE BUDGET 0080 |[EDUCATION & ADMIN OPERATIONS 500.00
TO CLEAN UP BUDGET 0611 |JUVENILE CCURT SUPPLEMENTAL 25,000.00
TO CLEAN UP BUDGET 0620 |COUNTY COMMUNITY SCHOOLS {25,000.00)
SET UP BUDGET FOR NEW ROP COURSES 0830 |ROC/P APPORTIONMENT (7,574.08)
TO COVER EXPENSES 9010 |OTHER RESTRICTED LOCAL 27,395.87
SET UP COMMUNITY FCUNDATION OF SANTA CRUZ CNTY BUDGET |8064 | 84C 36,790.00

3,347,807.72

3,347,807.72

Servires, Other Oparating Expenses (5000-5998) 9,188,678.00

TO COVER THE EQUITY INSTITUTE BUDGET 0080 [EDUCATICN & ADMIN OPERATIONS 11,100.00

SET UP BUDGET FOR NEW RCP COURSES 0830 | RCCP APPORTIONMENT 20,000.00

SET UP TRAVEL FOR CBC TRAINING 9010 {OTHER RESTRICTED LOCAL 5,000.00

TO COVER EXPENSES 9010 |OTHER RESTRICTED LOCAL 10,809.13

SET UP COMMUNITY FOUNDATION OF SANTA CRUZ CNTY BUDGET 9064 |S4C 245,134.00

Total Services, Cther Operating Expenses 9,188,678.00 9,287,326.46 31,100.00 230,943.13 9.549,369.59 9,549 369.59
Capital Qutlay (6000-5899) 698,116,00

Total Capital Outiay £58,116.00 598,115.00 - - 888,115.00 698,115.00

Cther Outgo (7100-7283, 7400-7499)

Total Other Dutgo

6,624,756.00

8,624,756.00

6,624.756.00

6,624,756.00

§,624,756.00

Interprogram Suppoert Sarvices (7300-7399)

ADJUST CIRECTANDIRECT COSTS TO BALANCE

ADJUST DIRECTANDIRECT COSTS TO BALANCE

ADJUST DIRECTANDIRECT COSTS TO BALANCE

SET UP COMMUNITY FOUNDATION OF SANTA CRUZ CNTY BUDGET
ADJUST DIRECT/INDIRECT COSTS TO BALANCE

oo40
0050
Q080
s064
0050

MAINTENANCE
QPERATIONS
ADMINISTRATICN
S4C
OPERATIONS

{69,269,00)

(6,000.00)
(8,769.00)
(8,307.00)

(2,937.00}

23,076.00

Net Increasal{Decrease) in Ending Fund Balance

22,566,368.42

22,577,230.42

Total Interprogram Support 69,269.00) {68,269.00) (26,013.00) 23,076.00 {72,206.00) (72,206.00)
Interfund Transfers Out (7600-7629) 45,000.00

Total Interfund Transfers Cut 45,000.00 45,000.00 - - 45,000.00 45 000.00
TGTAL EXPENDITURES 54.5—62,627.20 54,771,766.20 11,600.00 31 B.ETSTUD 54,601,571.20 54,601,571.20
ENDING FUND BALANCE 22.588,360.42 22,577,230.42 [37,179.00) (5,000.00% 22,535051.42 2253505142
Tota!l Expenditures plus Ending Fund Balance (7999) 76,848,996.62 76,848.996.62 {26,579.00) 313,205.00 77,136,622.62 77,136,622.62
Ending Fund Balance Change Detail (7599): 22,586,369.42

CONTRIBUTIONS TO COVER QUTDOOR ED SCIENCE (090 |EDUCATION & ADMIN CPERATIONS (25,579.00)

TC COVER THE EQUITY INSTITUTE BUDGET 0020 |EDUCATION & ADMIN CPERATIONS {11,600.00}

SET UP TRAVEL FOR CBO TRAINING 6010 [OTHER RESTRICTED LOCAL (5,000.00)

22,535,051.42

22,535,051.42

15

20f2



SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION

SUBJECT:

Santa Cruz County Treasurer’s Quarterly Investment Report; Quarter Ending: June 30, 2018
DEPARTMENT/PROGRAM:

Business Services/Administration

ACTION REQUESTED:

Receive and File Report

PREVIOUS STAFF/BOARD ACTION:

None

BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND/OR STATEMENT OF NEED:

The Superintendent/designee is required to provide a report of investments on a quarterly basis.
Since the SCCOE maintains all of its investments in the County Treasurer’s investment pool, the
June 30, 2018 quarterly report is provided.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:

None

CONTACT PERSON(S):

Mary Hart, Deputy Superintendent, Business Services

Jean Gardner, Senior Director, Fiscal Services
Rebecca Olker, Manager, Internal Finance

September 20, 2018 Agenda Item #5.0.3
16



Santa Cruz County Treasurer’s

Quarterly Investment Report

For the Quarter Ended
June 30, 2018

Edith Driscoll
Auditor — Controller — Treasurer - Tax Collector

17



Table of Contents

Introductory Section

Treasury Oversight Commission Members 1
Audit Process 2
Certification of Liquidity 3

Summary Reports

Summary of Portfolio Statistics 5-6
Portfolio Size and Composition 7
Portfolio Net Yield 8
Maturity Distribution 9
Credit Quality Distribution 10
Source of Funds 11
Detailed Reports
Detailed List of Investments Outstanding - 13-16
Securities Activity by Broker 18-22
Accrued Interest Report 24 -26

Miscellaneous Reports

Description of Investment Instruments 27-29

18



TREASURY OVERSIGHT COMMISSION

Chairperson:

Current Members:

Angela Aitken
Member Representing Special Districts
Alternate: Vacant

Chris Schiermeyer .
Member Representing School Districts
Alternate: Lynette Hamby

Bob Shepherd
Public Member
Alternate: Ron Sekkel

Bruce McPherson
Member Representing County of Santa Cruz
Board of Supervisors

Alternate: Greg Caput

Michael Watkins

Superintendent

Santa Cruz County Office of Education
Alternate: Mary Hart

19



AUDIT PROCESS

The Santa Cruz County Treasurer’s Office is audited on an annual basis by an
outside auditor selected by the Santa Cruz County’s Audit Committee.
Additionally, all investments are audited on a regular basis by the County
Auditor as well as on a daily basis by an in-house audit process.

20



COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ

EDITH DRISCOLL

AUDITOR-CONTROLLER-TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR
701 OCEAN STREET, SUITE 100, SANTA CRUZ, CA 95060-4073
(831) 454-2500 FAX (831) 454-2660

Laura Bowers, Chief Deputy Auditor-Controller
Pam Silbaugh, General Accounting Manager
Brian Howard, Accounting Manager

David Zweig, Treasury-Tax Collector Manager

July 10, 2018

Board of Supervisors
County of Santa Cruz
701 Ocean Street
Santa Cruz, CA 95060

Subject: CERTIFICATION OF LIQUIDITY

Dear Members of the Board:

This report shows the investment activity for the quarter ending June 30, 2018 of pooled funds on
deposit with the Treasurer and that it is in compliance with California Government Code Sections
27000 et seq., 53600 et seq., and the County’s 2018 Investment Policy.

Attached are summaries of the Portfolio Structure, Investment Details, Securities Activity by Brokers,

and other information to provide a better understanding of the investment activity that has occurred
through June 30, 2018.

Pursuant to Government Code § 53646(b)(3), I certify that because of the liquidity of the pool and the
county’s issuance of Teeter Notes and TRANS, the county has the ability to meet the pool’s
expenditure requirements for the next six months. '

Respectfully submitted,

A o ireee!

EDITH DRISCOLL
Auditor-Controller-Treasurer-Tax Collector

21



SUMMARY REPORTS

1. County of Santa Cruz Portfolio Summary including:
a) Issuer
b) Type of Asset
¢) Cost at Purchase
d) Current Book Value
e) Yield
f) Par Value
g) Market Value
h) Percent of Portfolio
i) Percent Allowed
]) Purchase Date
k) Maturity Date
1) Credit Rating
m) Source of Valuation

2. Portfolio Size and Composition Report
a) Portfolio Balance Trend
b) Portfolio Composition by Type

(O8]

. Portfolio Yield
a) Net Yield History / Comparison to LAIF
b) Net Yield Trend / Comparison to LAIF

4, County of Santa Cruz Investment Pool Maturity Distribution

5. County of Santa Cruz Investment Pool Credit Quality Distribution

6. County of Santa Cruz Investment Pool Source of Funds

22



Santa Cruz County Treasurer's Portfolio
As of June 30, 2018
FRe o

U.S. Treasuries

US Treasury (4) 15,000,000.00 15,000,000.00 1.37% 15,000,000.00 15,000,000.00 1.73% 100% 12/30/16 06/30/18 AA+ [ Aaa
US Treasury 16,939,570.31 16,998,494.63 1.11% 17,000,000.00 16,994,390.00 1.97% 100% 12/30/16 07/15/18 AA+ [ Aaa
US Treasury 19,809,463.89 19,985,650.00 1.49% 20,000,000.00 19,983,600.00 2.31% 100% 11/22117 07/19/18 © AA+/Aaa
US Treasury 14,919,140.63 14,995,997.06 1.08% 15,000,000.00 14,987,250.00 1.73% 100% 12/02/16 07/31/18 AA+ [ Aaa
US Treasury 16,960,820.31 16,996,654.49 1.16% 17,000,000.00 16,981,980.00 1.97% 100% 03/06/17 08/15/18 AA+ [ Aaa
US Treasury 17,898,046.88 17,979,060.13 1.45% 18,000,000.00 17,965,980.00 2.08% 100% 11107117 08/31/18 AA+ [ Aaa
US Treasury 16,962,148.44 16,994,337.17 1.16% 17,000,000.00 16,967,360.00 1.97% 100% 04/25/17 09/15/18 AA+ [ Aaa
US Treasury 14,905,078.13 14,986,223.46 1.12% 15,000,000.00 14,954,400.00 1.73% 100% 01/111/17 09/30/18 AA+ /[ Aaa
US Treasury 17,959,218.75 17,986,886.59 1.67% 18,000,000.00 17,972,640.00 2.08% 100% 1212117 09/30/18 AA+ [ Aaa
US Treasury 14,929,687.50 14,986,120.81 1.20% 15,000,000.00 14,951,700.00 1.73% 100% 04/26/17 10/15/18 AA+ [ Aaa
US Treasury 14,930,859.38 14,963,070.46 2.04% 15,000,000.00 14,964,968.44 1.73% 100% 05/22/18 10/15/18 AA+ [ Aaa
US Treasury 17,865,000.00 17,971,652.32 1.23% 18,000,000.00 17,925,480.00 2.08% 100% 03/29/17 10/31/18 AA+ [ Aaa
US Treasury 14,885,156.25 14,967,966.85 1.10% 15,000,000.00 14,864,100.00 1.73% 100% 11/16/16 02/15/19 AA+ [ Aaa
US Treasury 19,722,656.25 19,782,233.80 2.15% 20,000,000.00 19,748,400.00 2.29% 100% 04/05/18 05/15/19 AA+/ Aaa
US Treasury 14,771,484.38 14,840,496.10 2.01% 15,000,000.00 14,790,300.00 1.72% 100% 01/31/18 06/15/19 AA+ [ Aaa
US Treasury 16,746,328.13 16,899,748.03 1.33% 17,000,000.00 16,718,480.00 1.95% 100% 11/28/16 07/15/19 AA+ [ Aaa
US Treasury 19,910,156.25 19,961,866.13 1.04% 20,000,000.00 19,632,800.00 2.31% 100% 11/10/16 09/15/19 AA+ [ Aaa

-

$285,403,828.4

1111 287,000,000

PU

U.S. Government Agencies

Federal Farm Credit Bank 14,919,750.00 14,997,468.92 1.11% 15,000,000.00 14,992,500.00 1.73% 25% 01/19/17 07/18/18 AA+/ Aaa
Federal Farm Credit Bank 15,000,000.00 15,000,000.00 0.93% 15,000,000.00 14,971,500.00 1.73% 25% 09/06/16 09/06/18 AA+ [ Aaa
Federal Farm Credit Bank 17,973,648.00 17,995,059.00 0.96% 18,000,000.00 17,917,200.00 2.08% 25% 11/16/16 11/16/18 AA+ [ Aaa
Federal Home Loan Bank 9,993,300.00 9,998,260.32 1.28% 10,000,000.00 9,947,900.00 1.16% 25% 12/15/16 01/16/19 AA+ /| Aaa
Federal Farm Credit Bank 15,000,000.00 15,000,000.00 1.25% 15,000,000.00 14,923,500.00 1.73% 25% 01/17/17 01/17/19 AA+ [ Aaa
Federal National Mort Association 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00 1.00% 10,000,000.00 9,931,000.00 1.16% 25% 07/25/16 01/25/19 AA+ [ Aaa
Federal National Mort Association 19,945,000.00 19,973,706.70 1.61% 20,000,000.00 19,901,400.00 2.31% 25% 11/15117 01/28/19 AA+ [ Aaa
Federal Home Loan Bank 15,060,690.00 15,020,647.98 1.30% 15,000,000.00 14,924,250.00 1.74% 25% 03/02/17 03/08/19 AA+ [ Aaa
Federal Home Loan Bank 15,116,550.00 15,028,966.44 0.97% 15,000,000.00 14,891,250.00 1.74% 25% 05/13/16 03/15/19 AA+ [ Aaa
Federal National Mort Association 15,000,000.00 15,000,000.00 1.20% 15,000,000.00 14,845,950.00 1.73% 25% 05/23/16 05/23/19 AA+ [ Aaa
Federal Home Loan Bank 14,860,500.00 14,886,526.12 2.22% 15,000,000.00 14,867,250.00 1.72% 25% 04/16/18 05/28/19 AA+ [ Aaa
Federal Farm Credit Bank 13,962,900.00 13,988,595.19 1.15% 14,000,000.00 13,827,380.00 1.62% 25% 06/03/16 06/03/19 AA+ [ Aaa
Federal Home Loan Bank 17,989,740.00 17,995,479.50 1.43% 18,000,000.00 17,825,760.00 2.08% 25% 03/2917 06/27/19 AA+ [ Aaa
Federal Home Loan Mortg Corp 14,917,050.00 14,941,022.76 1.76% 15,000,000.00 14,764,350.00 1.73% 25% 11/21/17 01/17/20 AA+ /[ Aaa
Federal Home Loan Bank 9,989,000.00 9,991,163.43 2.18% 10,000,000.00 9,938,900.00 1.16% 25% 02/09/18 02/11/20 AA+ [ Aaa
Federal Farm Credit Bank 12,992,947.11 12,993,143.02 2.58% 13,000,000.00 12,989,990.00 1.50% 25% 06/11/18 06/11/20 AA+ [ Aaa

23




Santa Cruz County Treasurer's Portfolio
As of June 30 2018

Supranationals

Int Bank of Redevelopment 15,000,000.00 15,000,000.00 1.04% 15,000,000.00 14,906,550.00 1.73% 30% 03/02/16 01/02/19 AAA [ Aaa
Int Bank of Redevelopment 15,000,000.00 15,000,000.00 1.25% 15,000,000.00 14,859,900.00 1.73% 30% 04/26/16 04/26/19 AAA [ Aaa
Int Bank of Redevelopment 9,853,200.00 9,928,781.59 1.65% 10,000,000.00 9,801,200.00 1.16% 30% 01/04/17 11/27/19 AAA [ Aaa

Toyota Motor Credlt Corp 14,990,250.00 14,999,448.11 1.66% 15,000,000.00 14,995,500.00 1.73% 10% 1211117 07/13/18 AA- | Aa3
Microsoft Corp ) 11,889,225.00 11,912,385.69 1.62% 11,925,000.00 11,880,877.50 1.38% 10% 1117117 11/03/18 AAA [ Aaa [ AA+
Johnson & Johnson 10,028,500.00 10,006,819.54 1.02% 10,000,000.00 9,906,100.00 1.16% 10% 05/18/16 03/01/19 AAA [ Aaa
Johnson & Johnson 7,683,111.00 7,710,574.66 1.70% 7,740,000.00 7,667,321.40 0.89% 10% 111717 03/01/19 AAA | Aaa
Microsoft Corporation 9,998,500.00 9,999,448.61 1.11% 10,000,000.00 9,843,100.00 1.16% 10% 08/08/16 08/08/19 AAA [ Aaa | AA+
Apple Inc. 11,518,006.50 11,526,848.92 2.03% 11,550,000.00 11,404,123.50 1.33% 10% 11721117 02/07/20 AA+ [ Aal

Wal-Mart Stores Inc.

10,011,300.00 10,011,236.87 2.79% 10,000,000.00 10,026,300.00 1.16% 10% 06/27/18 06/23/20 AA [ Aaz [ AA

Negotlable CDs

Westpac Banking Corp NY 25,000,000.00 25,000,000.00 1.84% 25,000,000.00 24,996,250.00 2.89% 10% 12/19117 07/25/18 A1+ /P1/F1+
Svenska Handelsbanken NY 25,000,000.00 25,000,000.00 2.18% 25,000,000.00 25,004,000.00 2.89% 10% 04/27/18 07/27/18 A1+/P1/F1+
Toronto Dominion Bank NY 11,099,537.22 11,170,923.24 2.03% 11,100,000.00 11,170,065.67 1.29% 10% 06/01/18 08/06/18 A1+/P1/F1+
Toronto Dominion Bank NY 25,000,000.00 25,000,000.00 2.35% 25,000,000.00 25,007,750.00 2.89% 10% 03/27/18 08/22/18 A1+/P1/F1+
Union Bank NA 15,000,000.00 15,000,000.00 1.74% 15,000,000.00 14,988,750.00 1.73% 10% 01/12/18 09/12/18 A1/ P1/F1

Swedbank NY 25,000,000.00 25,000,000.00 2.32% 25,000,000.00 24,999,750.00 2.89% 10% 06/27/18 10/25/18 Al1+/P1/Fi+
Rabobank NY 25,000,000.00 25,000,000.00 2.42% 25,000,000.00 25,003,750.00 2.89% 10% 05/08/18 11/06/18 A1/ P1/F1+

‘Checking
Bank of the West Checking 10,537,544.51 10,537,544.51  0.60% 10537,54451 -  10,537,544.51 1.22% . NA NA NR

Total Chec
Money Market Mutual Funds (3)
Bank of the West MMF 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 1.10% 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 0.58% 10% NA NA

NR

Mlscellaneous Investments

Santa Cruz Auditor - Teeter 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 1.75% 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 0.58%

LAIF 45,288,461.00 45,288,461.00 1.90% 45,288,461.00 45,288,461.00 5.24% 10% NA NA NR
Lighthouse Bank CD 252,050.82 252,050.82 0.70% 252,050.82 252,050.82 0.03% 10% 04/03/17 04/03/19 FDIC
California GO Municipal Bond 12,191,707.35 12,192,180.71 2.31% 12,195,000.00 12,071,342.70 1.41% 10% 02/15/18 10/01/20 AA- | Aa3 [ AA-

GRAND TOTAL 863,177,283.99 864,643,201.68 1.59% 865,588,056.33 861,474,595.54 100.00%

(1) Market Value pricing obtained from Union Bank safekeeper (custodial bank).

(2) Split ratings reflect ratings from S&P and Moodys.
(3) Money Market Mutual Fund balances do not include current month interest.
(4) This US Treasury matured on Saturday 6-30-18. The proceeds of this matured bond are not reflected in SYMPRO.

24



Monthly B

Jul-16
Aug-16
Sep-16

Oct-16
Nov-16
Dec-16
Jan-17
Feb-17
Mar-17
Apr-17
May-17
Jun-17

Jul-17
Aug-17
Sep-17
Oct-17
Nov-17
Dec-17
Jan-18
Feb-18
Mar-18
Apr-18
May-18
Jun-18

Hist .
e Monthly Portfolio Balance Trend
$ 674,413,796.65 $1,000,000
s 61359127079 | B :ggg'ggg
$568,067,686.80 | &  ¢g25'000 7\ VAN
$ 558,390,040.90 | S 900,000 / / Yy
$578,088,827.77 | F  ¢875.000 — 7 G
$ 688,317,349.47 $850,000 / [
$ 735,349,123.88 $825,000 / \\ /
$ 692,905,328.84 $800,000 / ’
$ 751,328,804.81 $775,000 i 4
$ 888,466,358.98 o . AN 7
$ 884,845,184.36 2350’303 - N 7
$ 848,542,557.86 $675.000 ¥ ¥ —~
$ 802,005,772.15 $650,000 {— /
$ 748,725,187.72 625,000 A
$ 701,393,435.49 $600,000 LN ‘/
$ 664,356,827.43 $575,000
$ 763,716,802.73 $550,000 =
$ 895,152,385.06 $525,000 , ) ;
$ 949,230,650.05 $500,000 ST P ' ' : ' i :
§ 897,258,528.52 GO SO 0 0 00 e O :1\(:1‘ PO SR S AR SIS S
$ 891,137,699.55 W v& (OQQ 00 ‘\o & go Qe G v.Q \S‘ﬁ 5\5“ 5\‘ vgﬂ’ eoQ & Qo Q° 3 Qe \\\'b ?’Q ‘gi\ 50(”
$ 969,921,984.10
$ 939,980,112.42
$ 907,918,547.25
6/30/2018  3/31/2018 6/30/2017 6/30/2016
U.S. Treasuries 33.11% 32.89% 36.10% 31.31%
U.S. Agencies 26.93% 25.09% 32.52% 38.20%
Supranationals 4.62% 4.36% 4.57% 4.11%
Money Market Fund 0.58% 1.42% 0.57% 1.37%
Commercial Paper 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Negotiable CD 17.48% 20.74% 8.59% 9.58%
LAIF | BOW / Other 8.48% 8.29% 11.06% 8.31%
Medium Term Note 8.81% 7.22% 6.60% 7.13%
100% 100% 100% 100%
Portfolio Composition
Medium Term
LAIF / Notes
Checking / 8.81%
Other
9.06%
U.S. Treasuries
33.11%
Negotiable CD
17.48%
Supranationals

4.62%

U.S. Agencies
26.93%

25




Apportionment Rate

2.00%

Month County LAIF Difference
Jul-16 0.754% 0.600% 0.15%
Aug-16 0.753% 0.600% 0.15%
Sep-16 0.824% 0.600% 0.22%
Oct-16 0.754% 0.680% 0.07%
Nov-16 0.755% 0.680% 0.08%
Dec-16 0.783% 0.680% 0.10%
Jan-17 0.880% 0.780% 0.10%
Feb-17 0.947% 0.780% 0.17%
Mar-17 0.907% 0.780% 0.13%
Apr-17 0.953% 0.920% 0.03%
May-17 0.957% 0.920% 0.04%
Jun-17 0.986% 0.920% 0.07%
Jul-17 0.979% 1.070% -0.09%
Aug-17 0.971% 1.070% -0.10%
Sep-17 0.981% 1.070% -0.09%
Oct-17 0.993% 1.200% -0.21%
Nov-17 1.103% 1.200% -0.10%
Dec-17 1.148% 1.200% -0.05%
Jan-18 1.257% 1.510% -0.25%
Feb-18 1.346% 1.510% -0.16%
Mar-18 1.319% 1.510% -0.19%
Apr-18 1.412% 1.900% -0.49%
May-18 1.445% 1.900% -0.46%
Jun-18 1.512% 1.900% -0.39%
Net Yield Trend

1.80%

1.60%

1.40%

1.20%

1.00%

0.80%

0.60%

«
& & Y & <
bid & g 3 o
[ —County e==LAFF |

26




- 7. 18% 8 85%
Gl 2 KE% f&'"
3,86 % ‘%

e

50.00%

45.00%

40.00%

35.00%

30.00%

25.00%

20.00%

15.00%

10.00%

5.00%

0.00%

Portfolio Maturity Distribution

1 Day 2to 90 91 to 360 361 to 720

27



LAIF /

Money Market Unrated
| Checking 6%
2%

A1+ /P1/F1+
A1/P1/F1
17%

AATA
6%

AAA | AA+
69%

g SU

AAA | AA+ $ 600 69% 67% 77% 76%
AA $ 49 6% 4% 3% 4%

A $ - 0% 0% 0% 0%

A1/P1/F1 $ 151 17% 21% 9% 10%
Checking $ 10 1% 1% 2% 2%

Money Market $ 5 1% 1% 1% 1%

LAIF / Unrated $ 50 6% 6% 9% 7%

Total Portfolio Value  $ 865 100% 100% 100% 100%

* The AAA / AA+ category includes securities rated Aaa / AAA and Aaa / AA+

28




Special

Districts
County 9.46%
43.63%

Schools
46.85%

Cities
0.06%

13, 63°o
146%)|

. 85%

TN

29



DETAILED LIST OF INVESTMENTS OUTSTANDING

As of June 30, 2018

REPORT DESCRIPTION

The Detailed List of Investments Outstanding lists active investments in the portfolio on a
specific date providing information on the market values, book values, interest rates and
yields. It is arranged so that the securities of the same type are grouped together. What follows
is a-description of the abbreviations used in the report.

CUSIP — The CUSIP number is a 9-character aiphanumeric code which identifies a North
American financial security for the purposes of facilitating clearing and settlement of trades.

INVESTMENT NUMBER - This is a unique system-generated number assigned to the
security. Assigned by the County for internal identification purposes.

ISSUER - The issuer named is the name of the institution which issued the bond.
PURCHASE DATE — This is the date on which the security was purchased.

PAR VALUE — The nominal or face vale of a bond. This is the amount that will be received

at maturity with accrued interest. It is also the amount that is used in calculating the interest
received on the bond.

MARKET VALUE — Market value is the dollar amount the security could have been sold for
on the report date. By comparing this number to the book value one is able to determine what,
if any, loss or gain we would realize if we were to sell the bond in the open market.

BOOK VALUE - The original cost for each investment adjusted for amortization of

premiums or accretions of discounts to the date of the report. Amortizations and accretions
are calculated on a straight line basis.

STATED RATE — In most cases this is the coupon rate (rate of interest) set on a bond at the
issue date by the issuer. If the security has no coupon (discount note, UST Bill or CP) then
the stated rate is the yield to maturity on the date that the bond is purchased. The stated rate is
not intended for comparing yields between different investments because the item may have
been purchased at a discount or premium to par.

YTM — This is the Yield to Maturity. This is what the yield will be on the bond if it is held to
maturity.

DAYS TO MATURITY - This is the number of days remaining between the report date and
the maturity date.

MATURITY DATE — The maturity date is the date when a bond matures. On the maturity

date an issuer of a security will pay the holder of the security the par value plus any accrued
interest earned on the security from the date of last distribution.

30



Santa Cruz County

Quarterly Reports
Portfolio Management
Portfolio Summary

June 30, 2018

Par Market Book % of Days to YTM YTM
Investments Value Value Value Portfolio Term Maturity 360 Equiv. 365 Equiv.
U.S. Treasury Notes/ Bonds 252,000,000.00 250,420,228.44 251,310,808.03 29.95 563 168 1.373 1.392
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon 233,000,000.00 231,460,080.00 232,810,039.38 27.75 758 289 1.399 1.418
Medium Term Notes 76,215,000.00 75,723,322.40 76,166,762.40 9.08 640 315 1.682 1.705
Negotiable CDs 151,100,000.00 151,170,315.67 151,170,923.24 18.02 165 67 2.131 2.161
Municipal Bonds 12,195,000.00 12,071,342.70 12,192,180.71 . 1.45 959 823 2.275 2.307
Santa Cruz County Auditor Loan 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 ) 5,000,000.00 0.60 32 30 1.750 1.774
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 45,288,461.00 45,288,461.00 45,288,461.00 5.40 1 1 1.874 1.900
Treasury Discounts -Amortizing 20,000,000.00 19,983,600.00 19,985,650.00 2.38 239 18 1.466 1.487
Supranationals 40,000,000.00 39,567,650.00 39,928,781.59 476 1,063 310 1.252 1.270
Money Market Mutual Funds 02 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 0.60 1 1 1.598 1.620
Rolling Repurchase Agreements - 3 252,050.82 252,050.82 252,050.82 0.03 730 276 0.690 0.700
840,050,511.82 835,937,051.03 839,105,657.17 100.00% 536 199 1.585 1.607
Investments
Total Earnings June 30 Period Ending Fiscal Year Ending
Current Year 3,621,978.10 11,168,753.58
Average Daily Balance 939,281,312.36
Effective Rate of Return 1.55%
Santa Cruz County Treasurer,
Reporting period 04/01/201 8-06/30/2018 Portfolio SCRZ
NL! AC

Data Updated: SET_QE: 07/18/2018 07:53

Run Date: 07/18/2018 - 07:53

No fiscal year history available

31

PM (PRF_PM1)7.2.0

Report Ver. 7.3.2



Quarterly Reports
Portfolio Management

Portfolio Details - Investments

June 30, 2018

Page 1

Average Purchase Stated YTM YTM Days to Maturity
cusip Investment # Issuer Balance Date Par Value Market Value Book Value  Rate 360 365 Maturity Date
U.S. Treasury Notes/ Bonds
912828XK1 22212 US Treasury N/B 12/30/2016 17,000,000.00 16,994,390.00 16,998,494.63 0.875 1.093 1.108 . 14 07/15/2018
912828568 22207 US Treasury N/B 12/02/2016 15,000,000.00 14,987,250.00 14,995,997.06  0.750 1.063 1.078 30 07/31/2018
912828K82 22220 US Treasury N/B 03/06/2017 17,000,000.00 16,981,980.00 16,996,654.49  1.000 1.145 1.161 45 08/15/2018
9128282C3 22239 US Treasury N/B 11/07/2017 18,000,000.00 17,965,980.00 17,979,060.13  0.750 1434 1454 61 08/31/2018
912828L40 22233 US Treasury N/B 04/25/2017 17,000,000.00 16,967,360.00 16,994,337.17  1.000 1.146  1.162 76 09/15/2018
912828742 22216 US Treasury N/B 01/11/2017 15,000,000.00 14,954,400.00 14,986,223.46  0.750 1.108 1.123 91 09/30/2018
912828RH5 22253 US Treasury N/B 12/21/2017 18,000,000.00 17,972,640.00 17,986,886.59 1.375 1.647 1870 91 09/30/2018
91282881 22234 US Treasury N/B 04/26/2017 15,000,000.00 14,951,700.00 14,986,120.81 0.875 1.181  1.198 106 10/15/2018
912828L81 22268 US Treasury N/B 05/22/2018 15,000,000.00 14,964,968.44 14,963,070.46  0.875 2.010 2.038 106 10/15/2018
912828T83 22228 US Treasury N/B 03/29/2017 18,000,000.00 17,925,480.00 17,971,652.32  0.750 1211 1.228 122 10/31/2018
912828P53 22203 US Treasury N/B 11/16/2016 15,000,000.00 14,864,100.00 14,967,966.85  0.750 1.081 1.096 229 02/15/2019
912828R44 22263 US Treasury N/B 04/05/2018 20,000,000.00 19,748,400.00 19,782,233.80  0.875 2116  2.145 318 05/15/2019
912828R85 22258 US Treasury N/B 01/31/2018 15,000,000.00 14,790,300.00 14,840,496.10  0.875 1.979 2.007 349 06/15/2019
912828543 22206 US Treasury N/B 11/28/2016 17,000,000.00 16,718,480.00 16,899,748.03  0.750 1311 1.329 379 07/15/2019
9128282G4 22202 US Treasury N/B 11/10/2016 20,000,000.00 19,632,800.00 19,961,866.13  0.875 1.021 1.036 441 09/15/2019

Subtotal and Average 289,592,044.55 252,000,000.00 250,420,228.44 251,310,808.03 1.373  1.392 168
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon
3133EGML6 22218 Federal Farm Credit Bank 01/19/2017 15,000,000.00 14,992,500.00 14,997,468.92  0.750 1.006 1.111 17 07/18/2018
3133EGTES 22201 Federal Farm Credit Bank 09/06/2016 15,000,000.00 14,971,500.00 15,000,000.00  0.930 0.917 0.930 67 09/06/2018
3133EGJ48 22204 Federal Farm Credit Bank 11/16/2016 18,000,000.00 17,917,200.00 17,995,059.00  0.890 0.951 0.964 138 11/16/2018
3130AAE46 22211 Federal Home Loan Bank 12/15/2016 10,000,000.00 9,947,900.00 9,998,260.32  1.250 1.265 1.283 199 01/16/2019
3133EG3X1 22217 Federal Farm Credit Bank 01/17/2017 15,000,000.00 14,923,500.00 156,000,000.00  1.250 1.233  1.250 200 01/17/2019
3135GOM67 22199 Federal National Mort. Assoc. 07/25/2016 10,000,000.00 9,931,000.00 10,000,000.00  1.000 0.986  1.000 208 01/25/2019
3135G0H63 22245 Federal National Mort. Assoc. 11/15/2017 20,000,000.00 19,901,400.00 19,973,706.70  1.375 1.584  1.606 211 01/28/2019
3133782M2 22219 Federal Home Loan Bank 03/02/2017 15,000,000.00 14,924,250.00 15,020,647.98  1.500 1.278  1.296 250 03/08/2019
3130A7L37 22194 Federal Home Loan Bank 05/13/2016 15,000,000.00 14,891,250.00 15,028,966.44  1.250 0.958 0.972 257 03/15/2019
3136G3NA9 22196 Federal National Mort. Assoc. 05/23/2016 15,000,000.00 14,845,950.00 15,000,000.00 1.200 1.184  1.200 326 05/23/2019
3130ABF92 22264 Federal Home Loan Bank 04/16/2018 15,000,000.00 14,867,250.00 14,886,526.12  1.375 2192 2222 331 05/28/2019
3133EGCA1 22197 Federal Farm Credit Bank 06/03/2016 14,000,000.00 13,827,380.00 13,988,595.19  1.060 1.134  1.150 337 06/03/2019
3130AB2G0 22227 Federal Home Loan Bank 03/29/2017 18,000,000.00 17,825,760.00 17,995479.50  1.400 1.407 1.426 361 06/27/2019
3137EAEES 22244 Fed.Home Loan Mtg.Corp 11/15/2017 15,000,000.00 14,764,350.00 14,941,022.76  1.500 1736  1.760 565 01/17/2020
3130ADN32 22259 Federal Home Loan Bank 02/09/2018 10,000,000.00 9,938,900.00 9,991,163.43 2125 2151  2.181 590 02/11/2020
3133EJRLS 22270 Federal Farm Credit Bank 06/11/2018 13,000,000.00 12,989,990.00 12,993,143.02  2.550 2.543 2578 711 06/11/2020
Subtotal and Average 242,045,867.61 233,000,000.00 231,460,080.00 232,810,039.38 1.399 1.418 289
Portfolio SCRZ

Data Updated: SET_QE: 07/18/2018 07:53

Run Date: 07/18/2018 - 07:53

32

NL! AC
PM (PRF_PM2) 7.2.0

Report Ver. 7.3.2



Quarterly Reports
Portfolio Management

Portfolio Details - Investments
June 30, 2018

Page 2

Average Purchase Stated YTM YTM Daysto Maturity
cusipP Investment # Issuer Balance Date Par Value Market Value Book Value  Rate 360 365 Maturity Date
Medium Term Notes
89236TCP8 22251 Toyota Motor Credit Corp 12/11/2017 15,000,000.00 14,995,500.00 14,999,448.11 1.550 1.638  1.661 12 07/13/2018
594918BF0 22246 Microsoft Corp 11/17/2017 11,925,000.00 11,880,877.50 11,912,385.69  1.300 1593 1616 125 11/03/2018
478160BR4 22195 Johnson & Johnson 05/18/2016 10,000,000.00 9,906,100.00 10,006,819.54  1.125 1.007  1.021 243 03/01/2019
478160BR4 22247 Johnson & Johnson 11/17/2017 7,740,000.00 7,667,321.40 7,710,574.66 1.125 1680 1.704 243 03/01/2019
504918BN3 22200 Microsoft Corp 08/08/2016 10,000,000.00 9,843,100.00 9,999,448.61 1.100 1.090 1.105 403 08/08/2019
037833CK4 22248 Apple Inc 11/21/2017 11,550,000.00 11,404,123.50 11,526,848.92  1.900 2.000 2028 586 02/07/2020
931142EG4 22271 Wal -Mart Stores Inc. 06/27/2018 10,000,000.00 10,026,300.00 - 10,011,236.87  2.850 2753 2.791 723 06/23/2020

Subtotal and Average 66,585,056.81 76,215,000.00 75,723,322.40 76,166,762.40 1.682 1.705 315
Negotiable CDs
96121T5E4 22252 Westpac Banking Corp NY 12/19/2017 25,000,000.00 24,996,250.00 25,000,000.00 1.810 1.810 1.835 24 07/25/2018
86958JE21 22266 Svenska Handelsbanken NY 04/27/2018 25,000,000.00 25,004,000.00 25,000,000.00  2.150 2150 2.180 26 07/27/2018
89113XWH3 22269 Toronto Dominion Bank 06/01/2018 11,100,000.00 11,170,065.67 11,170,923.24 1.990 2.000 2028 36 08/06/2018
89113XB94 22261 Toronto Dominion Bank NY 03/27/2018 25,000,000.00 25,007,750.00 25,000,000.00  2.320 2320 2352 52 08/22/2018
62478TZK8 22256 MUFG Union Bank NA 01/12/2018 15,000,000.00 14,988,750.00 15,000,000.00 1.720 1720 1.744 73 09/12/2018
87019VLU9 22272 Swedbank NY _ 06/27/2018 25,000,000.00 24,999,750.00 25,000,000.00  2.290 2.290 2.322 116 10/25/2018
21685V4C0 22267 Rabobank N.Y. 05/08/2018 25,000,000.00 25,003,750.00 25,000,000.00  2.390 2390 2423 128 11/06/2018
R —
Subtotal and Average 184,891,479.64 151,100,000.00 151,170,315.67 151,170,923.24 2131 2.161 67
Municipal Bonds
13063DDE5 22260 State of California 02/15/2018 12,195,000.00 12,071,342.70 12,192,180.71 2.300 2275 2307 823 10/01/2020
Subtotal and Average 12,192,959.62 12,195,000.00 12,071,342.70 12,192,180.71 2.275 2.307 823
Santa Cruz County Auditor Loan
SYS22273 22273 Santa Cruz County Auditor 06/29/2018 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 1.750 1750 1.774 30 07/31/2018
Subtotal and Average 109,890.11 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 1.750 1.774 30
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) )
SYS6501 6501 LAIF (General Fund) 45,288,461.00 45,288,461.00 45,288,461.00 1.900 1.874  1.900 1
Subtotal and Average 60,779,889.72 45,288,461.00 45,288,461.00 45,288,461.00 1.874 1.900 1
Union Bank Activity - Dividend
SYS21111 21111 Union Bank 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.540 1519 1540 1
Subtotal and Average 72.27 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000 0.000 0
Portfolio SCRZ
NL! AC

Data Updated: SET_QE: 07/1 8/2018 07:53
Run Date: 07/18/2018 - 07:53

33

PM (PRF_PM2) 7.2.0



Quarterly Reports
Portfolio Management

Portfolio Details - Investments
June 30, 2018

Page 3

Average Purchase Stated YTM YTM Daysto Maturity
cusip Investment # Issuer Balance Date Par Value Market Value Book Value Rate 360 365 Maturity Date
Treasury Discounts -Amortizing
912796MK2 22250 US Treasury Bill o 11/22/2017 20,000,000.00 19,983,600.00 19,985,650.00  1.435 1.466 1.487 18 07/19/2018

Subtotal and Average 19,949,775.00 20,000,000.00 19,983,600.00 19,985,650.00 1.466  1.487 18
Supranationals _
45905UVD3 22187 Int Bank of Recon & Redev 03/02/2016 15,000,000.00 14,906,550.00 15,000,000.00  1.040 1.026  1.040 185 01/02/2019
459058FC2 22191 Int Bank of Recon & Redev 04/26/2016 15,000,000.00 14,859,900.00 15,000,000.00  1.250 1.233  1.250 299 04/26/2019
459058FS7 22214 Int Bank of Recon &Redev 01/04/2017 10,000,000.00 9,801,200.00 9,928781.59  1.125 1623 1.646 514 11/27/2019
Subtotal and Average 39,922,540.74 40,000,000.00 39,567,650.00 39,928,781.59 1.252 1.270 310
Money Market Mutual Funds 02
032 005 207 21923 Bank of the West - 03/16/2009 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00  1.620 1598  1.620 1
Subtotal and Average 22,959,843.44 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 1.598 1.620 1
Rolling Repurchase Agreements - 3
CD-101345 22231 Lighthouse Bank 04/03/2017 252,050.82 252,050.82 252,050.82  0.700 0.690 0.700 276 04/03/2019
Subtotal and Average 251,892.87 252,050.82 252,050.82 252,050.82 0.690 0.700 276
Total and Average 939,281,312.37 840,050,511.82 835,937,051.03 839,105,657.17 1.585  1.607 199
Portfolio SCRZ

Data Updated: SET_QE: 07/18/2018 07:53
Run Date: 07/18/2018 - 07:53

34

NL! AC
PM (PRF_PM2) 7.2.0



SECURITIES ACTIVITY
BY BROKER

A Report on the

Investment Transactions by Broker-Dealer
For the Period Indicated

35



Quarterly Reports
Activity Report
Sorted By Dealer

April 1,2018 - June 30, 2018

Santa Cruz County

Par Value Par Value
Percent Beginning Current  Transaction Purchases or Redemptions or Ending
cusIP Investment # Issuer of Portfolio Balance Rate Date Deposits Withdrawals Balance
Dealer: Bank of the West
Money Market Mutual Funds 02
032 005 207 21923 Bank of the West 1.620 193,022,171.90 201,022,171.90
Subtotal and Balance 13,000,000.00 193,022,171.90 201,022,171.90 5,000,000.00
Dealer Subtotal 0.595% 13,000,000.00 193,022,171.90 201,022,171.90 5,000,000.00
Dealer: Jeffries & Company, INC
U.S. Treasury Notes/ Bonds
912828181 22268 US Treasury N/B 0.875  05/22/2018 15,000,000.00 0.00
Subtotal and Balance 140,000,000.00 15,000,000.00 0.00 155,000,000.00
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon
3133EHDQ3 22226 Federal Farm Credit Bank 1.180 06/27/2018 0.00 15,000,000.00
3133EJRLS 22270 Federal Farm Credit Bank 2550  06/11/2018 13,000,000.00 0.00
Subtotal and Balance 58,000,000.00 13,000,000.00 15,000,000.00 56,000,000.00
Treasury Discounts -Amortizing
Subtotal and Balance 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
Dealer Subtotal 27.498% 218,000,000.00 28,000,000.00 15,000,000.00 231,000,000.00
Dealer: Keybanc Capital Mark
U.S. Treasury Notes/ Bonds
912828XA3 22180 US Treasury N/B 1.000  05/15/2018 0.00 15,000,000.00
912828XF2 22241 US Treasury N/B 1.125 06/15/2018 0.00 15,000,000.00
Subtotal and Balance 60,000,000.00 0.00 30,000,000.00 30,000,000.00
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon
313379DT3 22232 Federal Home Loan Bank 1.250  06/08/2018 0.00 10,000,000.00
3130ABF92 22264 Federal Home Loan Bank 1.375  04/16/2018 15,000,000.00 0.00
Portfolio SCRZ

Data Updated: SET_QE: 07/18/2018 07:53
Run Date: 07/18/2018 - 07:53

36

AC
DA (PRF_DA)7.2.0
Report Ver. 7.3.2



Quarterly Reports

Activity Report Page 2
April 1, 2018 - June 30, 2018
Par Value Par Value
Percent Beginning Current  Transaction Purchases or Redemptions or Ending
cuslip Investment # Issuer of Portfolio Balance Rate Date Deposits Withdrawals Balance
Subtotal and Balance 73,000,000.00 15,000,000.00 10,000,000.00 78,000,000.00
Dealer Subtotal 12.856% 133,000,000.00 15,000,000.00 40,000,000.00 108,000,000.00
Dealer: LAIF (General Fund)
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
SYS6501 6501 LAIF (General Fund) 1.900 48,288,461.00 55,112,100.22
Subtotal and Balance 52,112,100.22 48,288,461.00 55,112,100.22 45,288,461.00
Dealer Subtotal 5.391% 52,112,100.22 48,288,461.00 55,112,100.22 45,288,461.00
Dealer: Lighthouse Bank
Rolling Repurchase Agreements - 3
CD-101345 22231 Lighthouse Bank 0.700 04/03/2019 44432 0.00
Subtotal and Balance 251,606.50 444.32 0.00 252,050.82
Dealer Subtotal 0.030% 251,606.50 444.32 0.00 252,050.82
Dealer: Multi-Bank Secutities Inc
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon
Subtotal and Balance 30,000,000.00 30,000,000.00
Medium Term Notes
Subtotal and Balance 19,290,000.00 19,290,000.00
Supranationals
Subtotal and Balance 15,000,000.00 15,000,000.00
Dealer Subtotal 7.653% 64,290,000.00 0.00 0.00 64,290,000.00
Dealer: MUFG Union Bank NA
U.S. Treasury Notes/ Bonds
912828R44 22263 US Treasury N/B 0.875 04/05/2018 20,000,000.00 0.00
Subtotal and Balance 0.00 20,000,000.00 0.00 20,000,000.00
Portfolio SCRZ
AC

Data Updated: SET_QE: 07/18/2018 07:53
Run Date: 07/18/2018 - 07:53

37

DA (PRF_DA)7.2.0
Report Ver. 7.3.2



Quarterly Reports

Activity Report Page 3
April 1, 2018 - June 30, 2018
Par Value Par Value
Percent Beginning Current  Transaction Purchases or Redemptions or Ending
cusIP Investment # Issuer  ©f Portfolio Balance Rate Date Deposits Withdrawals Balance
Dealer: MUFG Union Bank NA
Medium Term Notes
931142EG4 22271 Wal -Mart Stores Inc. 2.850 06/27/2018 10,000,000.00 0.00
Subtotal and Balance 0.00 10,000,000.00 0.00 10,000,000.00
Negotiable CDs
62478TC98 22265 MUFG Union Bank NA 1.910 04/17/2018 10,000,000.00 0.00
62478TC98 22265 MUFG Union Bank NA 06/26/2018 0.00 10,000,000.00
89113XWH3 22269 Toronto Dominion Bank 1.890 06/01/2018 11,100,000.00 0.00
Subtotal and Balance 15,000,000.00 21,100,000.00 10,000,000.00 26,100,000.00
Municipal Bonds
Subtotal and Balance 12,195,000.00 12,195,000.00
Dealer Subtotal 8.130% 27,195,000.00 51,100,000.00 10,000,000.00 68,295,000.00
Dealer: Prebon
Medium Term Notes
Subtotal and Balance 36,925,000.00 36,925,000.00
Negotiable CDs
86958JYFO0 22257 Svenska Handelsbanken NY 1.680 04/27/2018 0.00 25,000,000.00
86958JE21 22266 Svenska Handelsbanken NY 2.150 04/27/2018 25,000,000.00 0.00
21685V4C0 22267 Rabobank N.Y. 2.390 05/08/2018 25,000,000.00 0.00
Subtotal and Balance 75,000,000.00 50,000,000.00 25,000,000.00 100,000,000.00
Dealer Subtotal 16.300% 111,925,000.00 - 50,000,000.00 25,000,000.00 136,925,000.00
Dealer: Royal Bank Canada Capital Mrkt
U.S. Treasury Notes/ Bonds
912828VE7 22243 US Treasury N/B 1.000 05/31/2018 0.00 20,000,000.00
Subtotal and Balance 52,000,000.00 0.00 20,000,000.00 32,000,000.00
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon
Subtotal and Balance 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00
Portfolio SCRZ

Data Updated: SET_QE: 07/18/2018 07:53
Run Date: 07/18/2018 - 07:53

38

AC
DA (PRF_DA)7.2.0
Report Ver. 7.3.2



Quarterly Reports

Activity Report Page 4
April 1, 2018 - June 30, 2018
Par Value Par Value
Percent Beginning Current  Transaction Purchases or Redemptions or Ending
cusiP Investment # Issuer of Portfolio Balance Rate Date Deposits Withdrawals Balance
Dealer: Royal Bank Canada Capital Mrkt
Negotiable CDs
78009N3E4 22240 Royal Bank of Canada 1.530 05/08/2018 0.00 25,000,000.00
05252WMW0 22254 Australia & New Zealand Bank 1.730 06/28/2018 0.00 25,000,000.00
21685VW54 22255 Rabobank Nederland NV NY 1.660 05/04/2018 0.00 25,000,000.00
65590AUA2 22262 Nordea Bank AB (PUBL) / NY 2.210 06/28/2018 0.00 25,000,000.00
87019VLU9 22272 Swedbank NY 2.290 06/27/2018 25,000,000.00 0.00
Subtotal and Balance 100,000,000.00 25,000,000.00 100,000,000.00 25,000,000.00
Supranationals
Subtotal and Balance 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00
Dealer Subtotal 9.166% 172,000,000.00 25,000,000.00 120,000,000.00 77,000,000.00
Dealer: SANTA CRUZ COUNTY
Santa Cruz County Auditor Loan
SYS22273 22273 Santa Cruz County Auditor 1.750 06/29/2018 5,000,000.00 0.00
Subtotal and Balance 0.00 5,000,000.00 0.00 5,000,000.00
Dealer Subtotal 0.595% 0.00 5,000,000.00 0.00 5,000,000.00
Dealer: Stifel Nicolaus & Co
U.S. Treasury Notes/ Bonds
912828VK3 22242 US Treasury N/B 1.375 07/02/2018 0.00 15,000,000.00
Subtotal ana Balance 30,000,000.00 0.00 15,000,000.00 -15,000,000.00
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon
Subtotal and Balance 30,000,000.00 30,000,000.00
Dealer Subtotal 5.357% 60,000,000.00 0.00 15,000,000.00 45,000,000.00
Dealer: Union Bank
Union Bank Activity - Dividend
SYS21111 21111 Union Bank 1.540 627.09 627.09
Portfolio SCRZ
AC

Data Updated: SET_QE: 07/18/2018 07:53
Run Date: 07/18/2018 - 07:53

39

DA (PRF_DA)7.2.0
Report Ver. 7.3.2



Quarterly Reports

Activity Report Page 5
April 1, 2018 - June 30, 2018
Par Value Par Value
Percent Beginning Current  Transaction Purchases or Redemptions or Ending
cusIP Investment # lssuer  ©of Portfolio Balance Rate Date Deposits Withdrawals Balance
Subtotal and Balance 0.00 627.09 627.09 0.00
Dealer Subtotal 0.000% 0.00 627.09 627.09 0.00
Dealer: Wells Fargo Securities LLC
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon
Subtotal and Balance 29,000,000.00 29,000,000.00
Medium Term Notes
Subtotal and Balance 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00
Supranationals
Subtotal and Balance 15,000,000.00 15,000,000.00
Dealer Subtotal 6.428% 54,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 54,000,000.00
Total 100.000% 905,773,706.72 415,411,704.31 481,134,899.21 .840,050,511.82
Portfolio SCRZ
Data Updated: SET_QE: 07/18/2018 07:53 AC

Run Date: 07/18/2018 - 07:53

40

DA (PRF_DA)7.2.0
Report Ver. 7.3.2



ACCRUED INTEREST REPORT

As of June 30, 2018

REPORT DESCRIPTION

The Accrued Interest Report shows the amount of interest earned, but not yet received, for
each active investment within the portfolio. Within the date range, the report displays the
amount of interest accrued as of the report beginning date, the amount of interest earned
during the reporting period, the amount of interest recorded as received, and the ending
accrued interest. What follows is a description of the report’s headings.

ISSUER - Issuer is the name of the institution which issued the investment.

INVESTMENT NUMBER — The investment number is a unique number that identifies the
investment position.

SECURITY TYPE — This heading is a three-character code assigned by the pfogram to
identify each type of investment.

PAR VALUE- The nominal or face value of the security.
MATURITY DATE — The maturity date is the date on when an investment will mature.

CURRENT RATE - For coupon instruments, the current rate is the coupon or interest rate at
the time of purchase. For discount instruments, the current rate is the yield to maturity.

BEGINNING ACCRUED INTEREST — This column displays the amount of interest earned,
but not yet received, as of the report beginning date.

INTEREST EARNED — This column shows the amount of interest earned during the selected
reporting period. ‘

INTEREST RECEIVED — This column includes the amount of interest posted as received
during the selected reporting period.

ENDING ACCURED INTEREST — This column displays the amount of interest earned, but
not yet received, as of the report ending date.

41



Santa Cruz County
Quarterly Reports
Accrued Interest
Sorted by Security Type - Maturity Date
April 1, 2018 - June 30, 2018

Adjusted Acc'd Int.

Security Par Maturity Current * Beginning at Purchase Interest Interest * Ending
CUSIP Investment # Type Value Date Rate Accrued Interest During Period Earned Received Accrued Interest
U.S. Treasury Notes/ Bonds
912828XA3 22180 TRC 0.00 05/15/2018 1.000 56,767.96 0.00 18,232.04 75,000.00 0.00
912828VE7 22243 TRC 0.00 05/31/2018  1.000 67,032.97 0.00 32,967.03 100,000.00 0.00
912828XF2 22241 TRC 0.00 06/15/2018 1.125 49,605.08 0.00 34,769.92 84,375.00 0.00
912828VK3 22242 TRC 0.00 06/30/2018 1.376 51,847.38 0.00 51,277.62 0.00 103,125.00
912828XK1 22212 TRC 17,000,000.00 07/15/2018 0.875 31,229.28 0.00 37,392.96 0.00 68,622.24
912828568 22207 TRC 15,000,000.00 07/31/2018 0.750 18,646.41 0.00 28,280.39 0.00 46,926.80
912828K82 22220 TRC 17,000,000.00  08/15/2018 1.000 21,132.60 0.00 42,734.81 0.00 63,867.41
9128282C3 22239 TRC 18,000,000.00 08/31/2018 0.750 11,739.13 0.00 33,383.15 0.00 45,122.28
912828140 22233 TRC 17,000,000.00 09/15/2018 1.000 7,853.26 0.00 42,038.04 0.00 49,891.30
912828T42 22216 TRC 15,000,000.00 09/30/2018 0.750 56,557.38 0.00 27,971.31 56,250.00 28,278.69
912828RH5 22253 TRC 18,000,000.00  09/30/2018 1.375 124,426.23 0.00 61,536.89 123,750.00 62,213.12
912828181 22234 TRC 15,000,000.00  10/15/2018 0.875 60,576.92 0.00 32,660.78 65,625.00 27,612.70
912828L81 22268 TRC 15,000,000.00 10/15/2018 0.875 0.00 13,268.44 14,344.26 0.00 27,612.70
912828783 22228 TRC 18,000,000.00 10/31/2018 0.750 56,685.08 0.00 33,559.48 67,500.00 ) 22,744.56
912828P53 22203 TRC 15,000,000.00 02/15/2019 0.750 13,984.81 0.00 28,280.39 0.00 42,265.20
912828R44 22263 TRC 20,000,000.00 05/15/2019 0.875 0.00 68,162.98 41,687.56 87,500.00 22,350.54
912828R85 22258 TRC 15,000,000.00 06/15/2019 0.875 38,581.73 0.00 32,780.97 65,625.00 5,737.70
912828543 22206 TRC 17,000,000.00 07/15/2019 0.750 26,767.96 ' 0.00 32,051.10 0.00 58,819.06
9128282G4 22202 TRC 20,000,000.00 09/15/2019 0.875 8,084.24 0:00 43,274.46 0.00 51,358.70
Subtotal 252,000,000.00 701,518.42 81,431.42 669,223.16 725,625.00 726,548.00
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon
313379DT3 22232 FAC - 0.00 06/08/2018 1.250 39,236.11 0.00 23,263.89 62,500.00 0.00
3133EHDQ3 22226 FAC 0.00 06/27/2018 1.180 46,216.67 0.00 42,283.33 88,500.00 0.00
3133EGML6E 22218 FAC 15,000,000.00 07/18/2018 0.750 22,812.50 0.00 28,125.00 0.00 50,937.50
3133EGTES 22201 FAC 15,000,000.00 09/06/2018 0.930 9,687.50 0.00 34,875.00 0.00 44,562.50
3133EGJ48 22204 FAC 18,000,000.00 11/16/2018 0.890 60,075.00 0.00 40,050.00 80,100.00 20,025.00
3130AAE46 22211 FAC 10,000,000.00  01/16/2019 1.250 26,041.67 0.00 31,250.00 0.00 57,291.67
3133EG3X1 22217 FAC 15,000,000.00 01/17/2019 1.250 38,541.67 0.00 46,875.00 0.00 85,416.67
3135G0OMeE7 22199 FAC 10,000,000.00  01/25/2019 1.000 18,333.33 0.00 25,000.00 0.00 43,333.33
3135G0H63 22245 FAC 20,000,000.00  01/28/2019 1.375 48,125.00 0.00 68,750.00 0.00 116,875.00
3133782M2 22219 FAC 15,000,000.00  03/08/2019 1.500 14,375.00 0.00 56,250.00 0.00 70,625.00
3130A7L37 22194 FAC 15,000,000.00 03/15/2019 1.250 8,333.33 0.00 46,875.00 0.00 55,208.33
3136G3NA9 22196 FAC 15,000,000.00 05/23/2019 1.200 64,000.00 ’ 0.00 45,000.00 90,000.00 19,000.00
3130ABF92 22264 FAC 15,000,000.00 05/28/2019 1.375 0.00 79,062.50 42,968.75 103,125.00 18,906.25

* Beginning Accrued may not include investments that redeemed in the previous month that had outstanding accrued interest. Ending Accrued includes outstanding purchase
Portfolio SCRZ

Data Updated: SET_QE: 07/18/2018 07:53 AC

Run Date: 07/18/2018 - 07:53 42 Al (PRF_AI) 7.1.1
Repurt Ver. 7.3.2



Quarterly Reports
Accrued Interest

t

Sorted by Security Type - Maturity Date Page 2
Adjusted Acc'd Int.
Security Par Maturity ~ Current * Beginning at Purchase Interest Interest * Ending
cusiP Investment # Type Value Date Rate Accrued Interest During Period Earned Received Accrued Interest
Federal Agency Issues - Coupon
3133EGCA1 22197 FAC 14,000,000.00 06/03/2019 1.060 '48,642.22 0.00 37,100.00 74,200.00 11,642.22
3130AB2G0 22227 FAC 18,000,000.00  06/27/2019 1.400 65,800.00 0.00 63,000.00 126,000.00 2,800.00
3137EAEES5 22244 FAC 15,000,000.00  01/17/2020 1.500 46,250.00 0.00 56,250.00 0.00 102,500.00
3130ADN32 22259 FAC 10,000,000.00  02/11/2020 2125 30,694.44 0.00 53,125.00 0.00 83,819.44
3133EJRLS 22270 FAC 13,000,000.00  06/11/2020 2.550 0.00 0.00 18,416.67 0.00 18,416.67
Subtotal 233,000,000.00 587,164.44 79,062.50 759,457.64 624,425.00 801,259.58
Medium Term Notes
89236TCP8 22251 MTN 15,000,000.00  07/13/2018 1.550 50,375.00 0.00 58,125.00 0.00 108,500.00
594918BF0 22246 MTN 11,925,000.00  11/03/2018 1.300 63,732.50 0.00 38,756.25 77,512.50 24,976.25
478160BR4 22195 MTN 10,000,000.00  03/01/2019 1.125 9,375.00 0.00 28,125.00 0.00 37,500.00
478160BR4 22247 MTN 7,740,000.00  03/01/2019 1.125 7,256.25 0.00 21,768.75 0.00 29,025.00
594918BN3 22200 MTN 10,000,000.00  08/08/2019 1.100 16,194.44 0.00 27,500.00 0.00 43,694.44
037833CK4 22248 MTN 11,550,000.00  02/07/2020 1.900 32,917.50 0.00 54,862.50 0.00 87,780.00
931142EG4 22271 MTN 10,000,000.00  06/23/2020 2.850 0.00 0.00 3,166.67 0.00 3,166.67
Subtotal 76,215,000.00 179,850.69 0.00 232,304.17 77,512.50 334,642.36
Negotiable CDs
86958JYFO 22257 NCB 0.00  04/27/2018 1.680 77,000.00 0.00 30,333.33 107,333.33 0.00
21685VW54 22255 NCB 0.00  05/04/2018 1.660 100,291.67 0.00 38,041.67 138,333.33 0.01
78009N3E4 22240 NCB 0.00  05/08/2018 1.530 153,000.00 0.00 39,312.50 192,312.50 0.00
62478TC98 22265 NCB 0.00  06/26/2018 1.910 0.00 0.00 37,138.89 37,138.89 0.00
05252WMW0 22254 NCB 0.00  06/28/2018 1.730 112,930.56 0.00 105,722.22 218,652.78 0.00
65590AUA2 22262 NCB 0.00  06/28/2018 2.210 6,138.89 0.00 135,055.56 141,194.45 0.00
96121T5E4 22252 NCB 25,000,000.00  07/25/2018 1.810 129,465.28 0.00 114,381.94 0.00 243,847.22
86958JE21 22266 NCB 25,000,000.00  07/27/2018 2.150 0.00 0.00 97,048.61 0.00 97,048.61
89113XWH3 22269 NCB 11,100,000.00  08/06/2018 1.990 0.00 71,175.67 18,407.50 0.00 89,583.17
89113XB94 22261 NCB 25,000,000.00  08/22/2018 2.320 8,055.56 0.00 146,611.11 0.00 154,666.67
62478TZK8 22256 NCB 15,000,000.00  09/12/2018 1.720 56,616.67 0.00 65,216.67 0.00 121,833.34
87019VLU9 22272 NCB 25,000,000.00  10/25/2018 2.290 0.00 0.00 6,361.11 0.00 6,361.11
21685V4C0 22267 NCB 25,000,000.00  11/06/2018 2.390 0.00 0.00 89,625.00 0.00 89,625.00
Subtotal 151,100,000.00 643,498.63 71,175.67 923,256.11 834,965.28 802,965.13
Municipal Bonds
13063DDES 22260 MUN 12,195,000.00 10/01/2020 2.300 120,764.38 0.00 70,121.25 120,764.38 70,121.25
Subtotal 12,195,000.00 120,764.38 0.00 70,121.25 120,764.38 70,121.25
Santa Cruz County Auditor Loan
SYS22273 22273 MC9 5,000,000.00  07/31/2018 1.750 0.00 0.00 486.11 0.00 486.11
* Beginning Accrued may not include investments that redeemed in the previous month that had outstanding accrued interest. Ending Accrued includes outstanding purchase
Portfolio SCRZ
AC

Data Updated: SET_QE: 07/18/2018 07:53

Run Date: 07/18/2018 - 07:53

43

Al (PRF_AI)7.1.1
Report Ver. 7.3.2



Quarterly Reports
Accrued Interest

Sorted by Security Type - Maturity Date Page 3
Adjusted Acc'd Int.
Security Par Maturity ~ Current * Beginning at Purchase Interest Interest * Ending
cusip Investment # Type Value Date Rate Accrued Interest During Period Earned Received Accrued Interest
Subtotal 5,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 486.11 0.00 486.11
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
SYS6501 6501 LA1 45,288,461.00 1.900 112,100.22 0.00 288,461.00 112,100.22 288,461.00
Subtotal 45,288,461.00 112,100.22 0.00 288,461.00 112,100.22 288,461.00
Union Bank Activity - Dividend
SYS21111 2111 PA3 0.00 1.540 313.19 0.00 368.02 627.09 54.12
Subtotal 0.00 313.19 0.00 368.02 627.09 54.12
Supranationals
45905UVD3 22187 MCs 15,000,000.00  01/02/2019 1.040 38,516.67 0.00 39,000.00 0.00 77,516.67
459058FC2 22191 MC8 15,000,000.00  04/26/2019 1.250 80,729.17 0.00 46,875.00 93,750.00 33,854.17
459058FS7 22214 MCs 10,000,000.00  11/27/2019 1.125 38,650.00 0.00 28,125.00 56,300.00 10,475.00
Subtotal 40,000,000.00 157,895.84 0.00 114,000.00 150,050.00 121,845.84
Money Market Mutual Funds 02
032 005 207 21923 RRP 5,000,000.00 1.620 60,005.66 0.00 86,643.15 127,862.18 18,786.63
Subtotal 5,000,000.00 60,005.66 0.00 86,643.15 127,862.18 18,786.63
Rolling Repurchase Agreements - 3
CD-101345 22231 RR3 252,050.82  04/03/2019 0.700 139.98 0.00 439.73 444.32 135.39
Subtotal 252,050.82 139.98 0.00 439.73 444.32 135.39
Total 820,050,511.82 2,563,251.45 231,669.59 3,144,760.34 2,774,375.97 3,165,305.41
* Beginning Accrued may not include investments that redeemed in the previous month that had outstanding accrued interest. Ending Accrued includes outstanding purchase
Portfolio SCRZ
AC

Data Updated: SET_QE: 07/18/2018 07:53
Run Date: 07/18/2018 - 07:53

44

Al (PRF_AI)7.1.1
Repoit Ver. 7.3.2



DESCRIPTION OF INVESTMENT
INSTRUMENTS

The investment activities of County Treasurers are restricted by state law to a select
group of government securities and prime money market instruments. To reduce the risk
inherent in any one instrument, state law further limits the percentage of the county's portfolio
that can be invested in any one type of security.

The types of securities available to the County Treasurer can be divided into three main
categories: 1) U.S. Treasury bills, notes and bonds. They are guaranteed by the U.S.
Government and are considered to have no credit risk. They also typically have the lowest
yield of the securities available for investing. 2) Securities issued by U.S. Government
Agencies and Instrumentalities. These securities consist mostly of notes and debentures of
agencies and government sponsored corporations. They are not guaranteed by the U.S.
government and therefore have some credit risk. Their yield is typically higher than U.S.
Treasury securities. 3) Prime money market securities. These consist of securities such as
bankers' acceptances, certificates of deposit, commercial paper and municipal bonds. The
yield is typically higher than the other types of securities in which the county invests but the
risk is also higher. Through diversification and purchasing only highly rated paper, the credit
risk is kept to an acceptable minimum. Each of the securities in these three categories is
subject to market risk if sold prior to maturity.

What follows is a brief description of the different securities used by the County
Treasurer:

U.S. Treasury Notes and Bonds are long term obligations of the U.S. government,
which bear coupons. Interest is payable every six months at a rate of one-half the annual
coupon. Treasury bonds and notes trading is conducted by the same securities dealers who
trade T bills. In the secondary market, prices are quoted in thirty-seconds of 1 percent. Except
for their maturities, notes and bonds are identical regardless of their label. Notes are issued for

original maturities of one to 10 years. Bonds are issued with original maturities of more than
10 years.

U.S. Treasury Bills are unusual instruments because they bear no specific interest rate.
Rather, they are issued originally at a discount from its ultimate maturity (par) value. Because
T Bills are issued and traded at a discount, investors receive their returns at maturity or on
subsequent resale, which ordinarily will be at prices higher than the original discount.

~ Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) Discount Notes. FFCB is an instrumentality of the
U.S. Government. The notes are the consolidated obligations of the 37 Farm Credit Banks
issued on a discount basis with maturities of one year or less. Although not as risk free as
Treasury notes, most experts believe the U.S. government has a moral commitment to the
farm credit system.

45



Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) debentures are consolidated obligations of the 37
Farm Credit Banks issued with a fixed coupon rate with maturities ranging from 6 months to
20 years. A debenture is a bond secured only by the general credit of the issuer.

Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) Discount notes are consolidated obligations of 12
District banks issued with a fixed coupon rate with maturities ranging from one to ten years.
Although the FHLB operates under federal charter with government supervision, the
securities are not guaranteed by the U.S. government. However, the banks are required to
maintain a considerable reserve pledged against the outstanding debt. They are therefore
considered relatively risk free.

Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae) Discount notes are
consolidations of government chartered private corporations issued on a discount basis with
maturities under one year. They are guaranteed by the corporations, but not by the U.S.
government. Many investors consider the securities a moral obligation of the U.S. government
and believe Congress would intervene before allowing default.

Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae) debentures are obligations
issued by the Association with a fixed coupon rate and various maturities. A debenture is a
bond secured only by the general credit of the issuer.

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) is the state sponsored investment fund. LAIF is
an excellent cash management tool to help meet most of the unexpected cash demands.
Currently the state limits the county's investment in this pool to $65,000,000.

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac) Participation Notes are
issues of the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation representing undivided interests in
conventional mortgages underwritten and previously purchased by it. The corporation
guarantees the timely payment of interest at the certificate rate and full return of principal.
Participation Certificates have original final payment dates of 30 years.

Government National Mortgage Association (Ginnie Mae) Pass Through are issues of
the wholly owned government corporation within the Department of Housing and Urban
Development. Principal and interest payment collected on mortgages in specified pools are
passed through to holders of GNMA Guaranteed certificates after deduction of servicing and
guaranty fees. GNMA's have original stated maturities of 12 to 40 years. For Santa Cruz
County, these are used only as collateral for overnight repurchase agreements.

Municipal Securities (Notes and Bonds) Debt securities issued by state and local
governments and their agencies are referred to as municipal securities. Such securities can be
divided into two broad categories: bonds issued to finance capital projects and short term

notes sold in anticipation of the receipt of other funds, such as taxes or proceeds from a bond
issue.

46



Banker's Acceptances. Briefly stated, the function of the bankers' acceptance is as
follows: A borrower may, under certain circumstances, obtain short-term credit by arranging
for his bank to accept a time draft upon it. The bank stamps its official accepted across the
face of the draft and converts it into a bankers' acceptance. The instrument, now being a bank
obligation, may be sold to an acceptance dealer who, in turn, may sell it to an investor. Most
BAs arise out of transactions involving the trade of manufactured goods or commodities.
Maturities range from one to 180 days.

Commercial Paper is a short-term promissory note issued by a company to finance
current transactions. All commercial paper is negotiable, but most commercial paper sold to
investors is held to maturity. Commercial paper is issued not only by industrial and
manufacturing firms but also by finance companies. Notes are sold on a discount or interest-
bearing basis with maturities not exceeding 270 days.

Medium Term Notes are obligations that have maturities of less than 5 years and are
issued by corporations or depositories organized and operating in the U.S.

Negotiable Certificate of Deposit (NCD). It is a receipt for deposit of a stated sum in
the bank on a given date, together with a promise to redeem this sum plus interest at the
indicated rate on a designated date. The instrument is negotiable because it is payable either to
bearer or to the order of the depositor.

Repurchase Agreements (RP or Repos). A holder of securities sells securities to an
investor with an agreement to repurchase them at a fixed price on a fixed date. Repurchase
agreements are usually for short periods of time (one to five days), when large sums are
received that will be needed in the next day or two. As a result, they are often called overnight
repos. From the point of view of investors, overnight repos offer several attractive features.
First, by rolling overnight repos, investors can keep surplus funds invested without losing
liquidity or incurring a price risk. Second, because repo transactions are secured by top quality
paper, investors expose themselves to little or no risk.

Guaranteed Investment Contract (GIC). This is a fixed income agreement offered by
insurance companies. GICs offer to pay a specific interest rate over a period of time. Some
GICs are eligible for early redemption, with or without penalty, which eliminates market risk
if interest rates rise. In Santa Cruz County it is only used for the investment of secured
indebtedness and only if the note documentation permits such an investment.

Money Market (Mutual) Fund. A money market mutual fund is a pooled fund that
invests in a number of money market vehicles (CD’s, CP, T-Bills, etc.). These funds are
designed to pay the investor interest, as well as provide full liquidity. Maturities of the
underlying investments are 13 months or less.

47



SUPERINTENDENT’S RECOMMENDATION FOR BOARD ACTION

SUBJECT:

Gifts and Donations
DEPARTMENT/PROGRAM:

Santa Cruz County Board of Education
ACTION REQUESTED:

Accept gifts and donations as follows:

Program Donor Value
STEM Plantronics $15,200.00

PREVIOUS STAFF/BOARD ACTION:

None. An acknowledgement letter will be sent to the donor following Board Action.
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND/OR STATEMENT OF NEED:

County Board of Education Policy P-3280, requires that all gifts and donations received by
programs conducted by the County Superintendent of Schools be accepted by the County Board
of Education.

FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:

Gifts/Donations received will be utilized by the programs to which they were donated.

CONTACT PERSON(S):

Nehal Pfeiffer, Teacher, Science & Engineering Fair

September 20, 2018 Agenda ltem #5.0.4
48



Fagen Friedman & Fulfrost LLp

70 Washington Street, Suite 205
Oakland, CA 94607
Main: 510-550-8200 Fax: 510-550-8211

Elizabeth B. Mori
Direct Dial: 510-550-8222

MEMORANDUM emori@f3law.com

Via Electronic Mail Only

TO: Members of the Board of Trustees
San Lorenzo Valley Unified School District

Laurie Bruton, Ed.D.
Superintendent

Chris Schiermeyer
Assistant Superintendent, Business Services

FROM: Elizabeth B. Mori
DATE: July 19, 2018
RE: Executive Summary and Analysis of

Integrative Leadership Academy Charter Petition

The following represents our analysis of the Integrative Leadership Academy (ILA or Petitioners)
charter petition (Petition) (re)submitted to the District on May 30, 2018 by lead petitioner, Nicky
Ramos-Beban, Ph.D. ILA proposes to operate a charter school that "nurtures the holistic
development of students in high challenge, low stress and joyful learning environments, and fosters
peak learning and peak performance" (Pet. at p. 1) in grades six through eight. ILA intends to
operate a site-based program at the Camp Harmon facilities in Boulder Creek in which students will
receive traditional classroom instruction. ILA seeks approval for a five-year initial charter term,
from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2023, from the San Lorenzo Valley Unified School District
(District).

As explained below, based on the review completed by District staff and legal counsel of ILA's
(revised and resubmitted) Petition, numerous deficiencies exist that support a recommendation that
the Petition be denied by the Board of Education (Board).

Analysis and Summary of Findings

Education Code section 47605 establishes the process for the District to review and approve or deny
a charter school petition. Education Code section 47605(b) states that in reviewing a petition, a
chartering authority shall be guided by the intent of the Legislature that charter schools are and

49



Members of the Board of Trustees

Laurie Bruton, Ed.D., Superintendent

Chris Schiermeyer, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services
July 19, 2018

Page 2

should become an integral part of the California educational system and that the establishment of
charter schools should be encouraged.

To this end, the Board may not deny a petition unless it makes written factual findings to support one
or more of the following findings:

a.The charter school presents an unsound educational program for the pupils to be
enrolled in the charter school.

b.The petitioners are demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program set
forth in the petition.

c.The petition does not contain the number of signatures.'
d.The petition does not contain an affirmation of each of the required conditions.

e. The petition does not contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of all fifteen (15)
required elements.

In addition, the charter petition must also include information regarding all of the following:

a. The facilities to be used by the charter school (e.g., identification of the proposed
site(s) where the charter school will operate).

b. The manner in which administrative services are to be provided.

c. Potential civil liability effects, if any, upon the District and the charter school.

d. Financial statements that include a proposed first-year operational budget,
including startup costs and cash flow and financial projections. (Educ. Code §
47605(g).)

Upon receipt of the Petition, District staff, in consultation with legal counsel, undertook a
comprehensive review of the Petition to analyze whether ILA complied with Education Code section
47605, discussed above, and whether the Petition as presented is consistent with sound educational
practice. The panel's review included an analysis of the proposed educational program, fiscal and

' To be complete, the petition must have been signed by either: (a) a number of
parents/guardians of students that is equivalent to at least one-half of the number of students that
the charter school estimates will enroll; or (b) a number of teachers that is equivalent to at least
one-half of the number of teachers that the charter school estimates will be employed at the
charter school. (Educ. Code § 47605(a)(1).)

50



Members of the Board of Trustees
Laurie Bruton, Ed.D., Superintendent
Chris Schiermeyer, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services

July 19, 2018

Page 3

governance structures, student admissions and discipline, labor and personnel issues, proposed
facilities and operations, and legal issues. Based on that review, the panel has determined that the
Petition is legally deficient in numerous respects, specifically:

Petitioners are demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program set
forth in the Petition;

The Petition presents an unsound educational program; and

The Petition does not contain reasonably comprehensive description of all required
elements set forth in Section 47605(b).

The following set of findings is not an exhaustive list of the deficiencies that the panel has identified
in the Petition. Rather, the summary below describes some of the most notable areas of concern that
would support the basis for a denial of the Petition.

1. The petitioners are demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program set
forth in the petition. (Educ. Code § 47605(b)(2).)

a.

The Petitioners are demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program
because, despite its stated attempt to address the deficiencies identified by the
Board in Petitioner's previous petition, the Petition still includes many
contradictions, inaccuracies, and deficiencies in the proposed educational
program, how it will assess student progress, and how it will address staff
development needs, calling into question the Petitioners' ability to successfully
deliver the proposed program.

1. The process of and details related to how Petitioners will implement the
various program elements and corresponding details are not included
and/or are not reasonably clear given stated program structures.

ii. Staff development and training is strikingly inadequate given the
sophistication and complexities of PBL and the fully-integrated STEAM
instructional strategies presented. Sufficient funding for minimally
recommended training levels to implement and sustain program is also not
presented in the budget.

1il. The Petition fails to mention any computer science curriculum, coding,
etc. for students consistent with a STEAM-based program.

v. Limited teacher staffing given enrollment numbers renders unrealistic the
Petition's stated plan to successfully deliver "high challenge, low stress
and joyful" standards-based instruction in the four core academic subject
areas, as well as provide Advisory, Life Skills, meditation, and dedicated
Art and Music instruction within the discrete subject area blocks

51



Members of the Board of Trustees
Laurie Bruton, Ed.D., Superintendent
Chris Schiermeyer, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services

July 19, 2018
Page 4

vi.

vil.

described, beginning with two middle school grade levels using single-
subject and/or highly qualified certificated teachers, while meeting its
lofty academic achievement goals.

The importance of teacher collaboration stated in the Petition is not borne
out by the daily schedules provided or described in the Petition narrative.
It is unclear how all of the required and desired substantive collaboration,
as well as unit design and PBL and STEAM-integrated lesson planning
can be integrated within the school/work day/calendar as presented.

Although Petitioners state that they have dropped GLAD and Visual and
Performing Arts (VAPA) as discrete educational program components, the
student schedule continues to include dedicated blocks of weekly
instruction in music and art in all grades, and at levels (instructional
minutes) nearly equivalent to instructional minute offerings in each of the
core academic subject areas (English Language Arts, Math, Social
Science, and Science), all without sufficient detail regarding proposed
standards-based music and arts curriculum.

The Petition continues to lack sufficient evidence-based research
demonstrating that Transcendental Meditation® improves student
educational achievement at the grade levels proposed to be served.
Perception surveys indicate personal feelings and are not conclusive
objective findings with statistical application for educators. Anecdotal
evidence cited in the Petition describes school environments and student
populations (urban and generally high-poverty) that are strikingly different
from the student population intended to be served by the Charter School
(District resident students currently being homeschooled and/or enrolled in
private and out-of-area schools).

b. The Petitioners are demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program
because their financial plan lacks appropriate detail and is fiscally unsound.

1.

The Charter School continues to rely extremely heavily upon soft money
(grants/fundraising) both during first year of operations and as an ongoing
component of its annual budgets. State and federal funding is completely
inadequate to sustain the program as presented and relatively minor
fluctuations in expected revenue and/or expenses put the Charter School at
risk of not meeting mandated reserve levels. Long-term financial
instability and viability is of significant concern with such substantial
reliance on soft money.

52



Members of the Board of Trustees
Laurie Bruton, Ed.D., Superintendent
Chris Schiermeyer, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services

July 19, 2018

Page 5

ii.

iil.

1v.

Despite statements in the Petition that the proposed facility is suitable for
Charter School operations, the site requires several significant
improvements before the Charter School can assume occupancy and begin
operations. Notably, these include ADA accessibility upgrades throughout
the site, a zoning change, as well as safety upgrades. No timeline is
presented for necessary repairs and the budget for same is patently
inadequate. Lacking these repairs, the facility is not suitable.

The actual cost of renting the facility was represented to be $200,000 per
year according to the Camp Harmon Director who spoke to the Board at
the District Board meeting held on June 13, 2018. This rental fee is not
reflected in the budget.

The budgeted start up allocation for technology and equipment per student
remains inadequate given the educational program described in the
Petition. At $250 per student, which will generally only cover
Chromebooks, it is unrealistically low in light of the basic technology
required to successfully implement a STEAM-based program. Similarly,
projected per pupil spending for all of the curriculum and assessment, as
well as supplies necessary to support a fully-integrated STEAM
curriculum using PBL as described in the Petition is inadequate.

2. ILA presents an unsound educational program for the students to be enrolled in the
charter school. (Educ. Code § 47605(b)(1).)

a.

The Petition proposes to serve students in grades 6-8 in a standards-based
educational program that utilizes STEAM, PBL, and meditation practices to
improve academic outcomes for students. Petitioners appear well-versed in
current educational trends and pedagogy, necessary instructional structures, and
available online resources and information. However, the Petition is significantly
lacking in meaningful detail regarding how Petitioners will coordinate the
identified structures, curriculum, and instructional materials to deliver the

promised standards-based program, and provide ongoing, sustainable and

effective staff development, sufficient to ensure a viable overall program.

3. The Petition does_not_contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of all elements
required in Education Code section 47605 subdivision (b)(5).

a.

Element 1 — Educational Program

1.

The Petition's information on and plan for professional development is
inadequate as described above.

53



Members of the Board of Trustees
Laurie Bruton, Ed.D., Superintendent
Chris Schiermeyer, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services

July 19,2018
Page 6

ii.

iil.

1v.

V.

vil.

The Petition does not provide a specific plan for how the Charter School will
phase in grade levels and does not include adequate information on proposed
grade level programs. Although the Charter School intends to offer both 6™
and 7" grades in its first year of operation, there is no mention of the
completely different 7t grade standards and curriculum to be used.

Petitioners have not demonstrated the necessary background and/or
experience regarding the needs of English Learners and the plan for meeting
the needs of English Learners is not well-explained. Specifically, training for
teachers in specially designed academic instruction in English (SDAIE) is not
mentioned at all, other than an assurance that teachers will have CLAD
certification and that one day of professional development in November, with
no specifics, will be provided. The Petition further fails to mention who will
administer the ELPAC, which requires extensive training for administration
and scoring. Classification criteria is also unclear.

Although Project GLAD was represented as being removed from the
program, Section 2 at page 63 of the Petition provides that professional
development will still be provided for Project GLAD and EL Achieve, again
without a timeline, details, or outline.

How the Petitioners will respond to students not achieving at or above
expected grade levels is undefined beyond statements that it will happen
through in school interventions, after school tutoring, and summer school.
No specifics are provided to describe what the interventions will be, what
materials will be used, etc.

The proposed social emotional learning (Lifeskills) curriculum is for high
school-aged students. As is a common theme throughout the Petition, there is
no identified professional development for teachers who will be responsible
for implementing this curriculum, for which a significant portion of each
student's weekly instructional minutes is dedicated.

The Petition fails to address how the Charter School will implement the
requirements of the Fair Education Act, to include contributions of
underrepresented racial, ethnic, and cultural groups to economic, political,
and social developments within the Social Science curriculum. Likewise,
there is no mention of how the Charter School will satisfy the requirements
of the California Healthy Youth Act to provide comprehensive sexual health
and HIV prevention education.

54



Members of the Board of Trustees
Laurie Bruton, Ed.D., Superintendent
Chris Schiermeyer, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services

July 19, 2018
Page 7

Element 3 — Methods for Measuring Student Progress

1.

ii.

The Petition references an unfamiliar data warehousing system and fails to
describe what staff will be trained in its use in order to enter data and run all
of the reports necessary for teacher evaluation of the effectiveness of the
instructional strategies being utilized.

The Petition does not include a sample report card and despite indicating that
the Charter School will use a rubric system to evaluate progress, there are no
criteria or rubrics included for the assessments identified in the Petition,
including exhibitions, portfolios, or student-led conferences. Although a
letter grade system is provided in the Student Handbook, how such grades
will be determined using an undefined rubric system remains unknown.
Alignment with state and federal college and career readiness requirements is
accordingly in question.

Element 4 — Governance Structure

While the Petition states that the Charter School and its Board of Directors
will comply with the Brown Act and the Political Reform Act, the bylaws do
not preclude interested directors from financially benefitting from the Charter
School's operations, including service as vendors to the Charter School.
Given that one of the main components of the program — Transcendental
Meditation or Quiet Time — requires implementation of Center for Wellness
and Achievement in Education (CWAE) proprietary programs, which
generally come at a cost to educational institutions and a majority of the
Charter School's Board of Directors are also directors of CWAE, the
governance team members' parent organization will appear to realize
financial benefits from its business with and seemingly meaningful control
over the Charter School.

FElement 6 — Health and Safety Procedures

1.

The Petition includes a Health and Safety Handbook which includes general
protocols for emergency situations and other health and safety concerns.
However, as set forth above, critical health and safety issues do not appear to
be sufficiently addressed, as the budget does not include sufficient funds to
cover the cost of facility upgrades necessary to bring the proposed facility
(Camp Harmon) into compliance with the ADA and applicable state building
codes. Given the Petition's ambitious goal of opening for fall 2018, the lack
of detailed repair requirements, plan and timeline for implementation, intent
to complete repairs, and associated resources identified to fund such

55



Members of the Board of Trustees

Laurie Bruton, Ed.D., Superintendent

Chris Schiermeyer, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services
July 19, 2018

Page 8

necessary upgrades, student, staff, and community health and safety appears
to be at risk.

b. Element 10 — Student Suspension and Expulsion Procedures

1. Student suspension and expulsion procedures are unclear/unsettled. The
Petition toggles back and forth between hearings before the Board and
Administrative Hearing Panel, while seemingly indicating an AHP process
preference, with no acknowledgement that that the Charter School will
lack a sufficient number of certificated teachers meeting AHP
qualifications in order to convene an expulsion panel.

il. Student suspension and expulsion procedures also appear to be almost
wholly generic/boilerplate, with updated statutory language merely cut
and pasted into the narrative set forth in Section J, without any meaningful
attempt made to contextualize the information and/or connect the language
to the overall policy in an understandable way. As a result, there is some
confusion regarding procedures, and references to "involuntary removals"
other than for disciplinary reasons as triggering additional yet undefined
due process/hearing rights when there do not otherwise appear to be any
instances described in the Petition where removals would be permissible
short of expulsion or consecutive absences in excess of 10 school days.

Summary and Conclusions

As discussed above, the District must approve a charter petition unless it makes one or more of the
factual findings outlined above. Such action must be taken within 60 calendar days of the date the
Petition was received by the District, in this case, August 1, 2018. Based on the foregoing analysis,
it is the panel's recommendation that the Board adopt the proposed resolution and findings as we
believe that there are sufficient grounds to support the denial of the Petition.

56



INTEGRATIVE
LEADERSHIP
ACADEMY

Integrative Leadership Academy submitted its first charter petition to San Lorenzo Valley School District on January 10, 2018.

In the spirit of partnership with SL\VUSD, ILA addressed all of the findings from the January 10" Petition and submitted a new and
revised Petition. ILA’s response to the SLVVUSD findings from the January Charter Petition are detailed in the last half of the
introduction chapter for this Petition, submitted to SLVUSD on May 30, 2018.

SLVUSD produced a new set of findings related to the May 30, 2018 Petition. This document details each finding by SLVUSD and
our response.

Of the 28 discrete findings by SLVUSD, 14 are based on false conclusions or inaccurate data that are not supported by evidence in the
Petition.

Half of the remaining 14 findings ask for more details regarding the professional development necessary to implement and sustain our
approach to an interdisciplinary, project-based, STEAM curriculum. Much detail is already provided in the Petition, and these places
are noted below, but more details have been added below to flesh out the approach to implementing and sustaining our instructional
program.

Finding | SLVUSD Finding Petitioner’s Response

#

. A The Petition proposes to The Petition gives many specifics as to how the instructional program will be
serve students in grades 6- | implemented, how it will be paid for, and how it will be sustained. These details are
8 in a standards-based found in the descriptions of curriculum and instruction in Element A (pages 17-22, 30-
educational program that 33, 39-48); in Table 15 in Element A (pages 51-53) that gives a curriculum summary
utilizes STEAM, PBL, and | for each content area and each grade level; in the description of professional
meditation practices to

57



improve academic
outcomes for students.
Petitioners appear well-
versed in current
educational trends and
pedagogy, hecessary
instructional structures,
and available online

resources and information.

However, the Petition is
significantly lacking in
meaningful detail
regarding how Petitioners
will coordinate the
identified structures,
curriculum, and
instructional materials to
deliver the promised
standards-based program,
and provide ongoing,
sustainable and effective
staff development,
sufficient to ensure a
viable overall program.

development plans (pages 81-84); in Appendix E that has sample STEAM curriculum
units; in Appendix G that has the scope and sequence table for all subject areas; and
in Appendix B that has the 5-year budget and narrative.

The Lead Petitioner, Nicky Ramos-Beban, Ph.D., is responsible for organizing and
leading the implementation of the school’s curriculum and instruction, and will be
responsible for overseeing the ongoing, sustainable and effective staff development to
ensure the viability of the overall program. Nicky has a research doctorate in
Curriculum and Teacher Education from Stanford University and has been an
instructor in the Teacher Education departments at San Jose State University and
Stanford University since 1999. In this role, Nicky has developed curriculum for and
taught almost every teacher education course, including assessment, classroom
management, educational psychology, and project-based learning, and has personally
mentored, coached and evaluated over a hundred new and veteran teachers during
her career. As the founding principal of two small charter schools, Nicky is well-
versed in developing, leading, and sustaining the rigorous, coherent and evidence-
based professional development necessary to support teachers to develop and hone
their curriculum, instruction and assessment practices necessary to meet the diverse
learning needs of their students. Many of the policies, practices and structures of
ILA’s school program, including a comprehensive professional development
approach, are outlined in a book Nicky co-authored called Be the Change:
Reinventing School for Student Success.

The implementation of ILA’s program begins with spring recruitment and hiring of
teachers with multiple subject and/or single subject credentials in math, English,
social science, science, music or art. ILA will work to recruit a mix of veteran and
beginning teachers who are skilled in lesson and unit planning, and who are excited to
create and execute a school-wide interdisciplinary curriculum with a focus on project-
based learning and STEAM (science, technology, engineering, art and math.)

58




All ILA staff will be expected to participate in three weeks of professional
development during the summer before school opens and the start-up budget (see
Appendix B) has over $100,000 allocated to provide for summer teacher stipends and
curricular resources, as well as to bring in expert educational coaches in PBL and
STEAM. Although the charter petition describes only five days of summer
professional development, ILA will actually contract with incoming teachers for 15
days of summer professional development in the first year of the school. Beginning in
year two, new and beginning teachers will participate in all fifteen days of professional
development during the summer, and returning teachers will participate for the final
ten days.

The summer teacher retreat will consist of 15 days of teacher professional
development in July, beginning with three days of the Buck Institute’s PBL 101. The
Buck Institute for Education (www.bie.org) is arguably the national leader in project-
based learning, and has been providing quality PBL PD to teachers for decades. In
this course, teachers learn the basics of project-based instruction including backwards
unit mapping and lesson planning from an expert PBL instructor.

The next three days are devoted to unit mapping for the entire school year, beginning
with the state standards and the SBAC blueprints, and backwards mapping all units
in each subject area, including music and art. The purpose of backwards mapping is
for teachers to gain a deep understanding of the state standards in their content areas,
to develop a clear understanding of what students should know and be able to do at
the end of each unit, and to make sure that all prioritized standards are taught and
assessed during the course of the school year.

Next, teachers will spend six days exploring STEAM (science, technology, engineering,
art and math) and its connection to project-based and interdisciplinary learning, and
will begin to write their curriculum units for the year. ILA plans to contract with the
instructional coaches of the “STEAM Team” from the Santa Clara County Office of
Education (or a similarly qualified provider) to provide assistance with project-based

59




instruction, inclusive teaching strategies and support with the integration of STEAM
content areas and the infusion of technology to bring context and real-world to the
classroom.

During this time, ILA staff will work with their STEAM coach on curriculum and
lesson planning, and will collaborate with their teaching peers to find and highlight
the interdisciplinary connections between the units in each course in order to develop
the sequence of interdisciplinary projects that will form the backbone of ILA project-
based instruction.

The final three days of summer professional development are devoted to an overview
of the advisory program and the role of the advisory, and an introduction into the
advisory life skills curriculum, which will be provided for advisors. 1LA’s life skills
curriculum has been in development for the past year and consists of a series of well-
sequenced learning activities and debrief sessions for students to explore all facets of
their social-emotional intelligence, including concepts relating to self-talk and self-
perception, labels, emotions, relationships, leadership and personal identity as it
relates to issues of race, ethnicity, gender, language status and economic class.

The overarching purpose of this intensive summer professional development is to
support ILA teachers to begin the school year with a clear plan for their teaching units
and a completed introductory unit for the school year featuring the first
interdisciplinary STEAM-based project. To get an idea of what this curriculum might
look like, please see the project samples for each grade level in Appendix E “Sample
PBL and STEAM Curriculum Units.”

All ILA teachers have two free and unscheduled teaching periods built into the their
schedule to provide ample time for unit planning, lesson and project planning, and
assessment of student work. Additionally, all staff participates in three hours of
professional development each week to provide plentiful time to learn from experts
and each other, share curriculum and instruction, collaborate on student projects and

60




assessments, and craft interventions and supports for struggling students. Topics
rotate so that by the end of the year, important issues have been discussed and
explored thoroughly, and teachers have had many opportunities to work and learn
together, creating a teacher culture built on the solid foundation of teacher
professional development.

In addition, ILA has set aside three release days for teachers during the school year to
focus more in depth on topics such as differentiating project-based curriculum and
instruction for English Language Learners, supporting Special Education students,
and integrating technology into project-based curriculum.

Because ILA is structured with adequate and ample daily, weekly and yearly time for
teacher professional development, and has the resources to contract with local experts,
as well as the deep expertise and knowledge of its instructional leader, ILA is poised to
deliver on its promise of an ambitious, rigorous and engaging project-based curricular
and instructional program that, according to our parents, is exactly what San Lorenzo
Valley parents want for their middle school children.

I A. 1

While the Petition includes
definitions of STEAM and
PBL practices and
benefits, again, the process
of implementation and
related details are not
included. The example of
the student schedule
indicates separate
instructional blocks;
however, the proposed
structures/instructional

See the response to I.A. above.

61




model calls for Project
Based Leaning that relies
heavily on cross-content
projects that involve
ongoing coordinated
project development and
extensive training for
teachers.

I1.A.2

Petitioners identify the Buck
Institute as its main PBL
source for staff development,
apparently relying mainly on
free content available online
as cots associated with staff
training at the Buck Institute
are not provided in the
budget. This is unreasonable
as a sole source/method of
providing the meaningful and
ongoing staff development in
the PBL methods,
particularly when considered
in light of the fact that the
Petition fails to include any
information regarding who
will be leading staff training
using free online content or
their qualifications to do so.

This finding is false. Costs for staff professional development and training are
provided in the start-up budget (Appendix B) that identifies $30,000 of funding for
professional development, over $80,000 for instructional materials, resources and
textbooks related to PBL, STEAM, social-emotional learning and other areas central
to the school’s program.

Furthermore, the assertion that the petitioners will rely in any way on free content for
professional development is false and unsubstantiated in the Petition. Nowhere in the
Petition does it state that the Petitioners will use “free content online.”

I1.A.3

A full implementation of

STEAM requires an ongoing
staff development model that
provides in depth training in

See the response to I.A. above.

62




pedagogy, curriculum
development, instructional
strategies, class
management and
organization. Again, there is
a significant lack of detail
regarding staff development
nor a specific training
model described. Repeating
that Petitioners will provide a
STEAM-focused PBL
program as a valid
educational option without
specifics of how it will be
implemented, how it will be
paid for, and how it will be
sustained, is insignificant

I.A.4

Technology for students is
only mentioned in the
context of PBL and
STEAM projects. There is
no provision for teacher
training and professional
development for the
complex integration
required by these
instructional strategies.
There is also no mention of
any computer science
curriculum, coding, etc.
for students consistent with
a STEAM-based program.

Yes, technology is embedded in PBL and is not a stand-alone, decontextualized
elective. STEAM educators advocate for embedding technology learning and use
within the context of interdisciplinary projects, because technology is a tool for
learning, not an end in itself. Please see Appendix E for PBL units and curricula that
incorporate technology within the context of an interdisciplinary project, and please
see the answer to I.A. above for more details about how technology learning is
integrated into the professional development plan.

63




I.A.5

There is no description of
how Petitioners will deliver
standards-based instruction
in the four core academic
subject areas (English
Language Arts, Math,
Science, and Social Studies,
as well as provide Advisory
Life Skills, meditation and
dedicated Art and Music
instruction with only four
teachers and live up to its
assurances that teaching staff
will be appropriately
credentialed and qualified.

Given these staffing and
enrollment numbers,
academic subject areas will
likely need to be “cored”” and
different grade levels
potentially combined in single
classes. This places
significant additional and
unreasonable burdens on the
limited teaching staff for
developing all of the required
STEAM and PBL units,
individual lesson planning,
development of assessment
tools, within the Charter
School’s advertised STEAM
and PBL-focused
instructional model.

This finding is false for multiple reasons. The Petition contains multiple detailed
descriptions of how Petitioners will deliver standards-based instruction in the content
areas and life skills curriculum within Advisory; these descriptions are found on pages
24-26, 34-37 and 49-50 in Element A. Appendix E provides sample curriculum units
across all content areas. Appendix G provides the complete scope and sequence for
all courses across all grade levels. In addition, Advisory and Life Skills are not
separate classes as the findings state.

Furthermore, classes will not be cored, nor will different grade levels be combined.
There is no evidence in the Petition that supports this false conclusion.

To demonstrate how four appropriately credentialed and qualified middle school
teachers can deliver the full ILA curriculum without combining grade levels within
one classroom, we have included a sample master schedule below. Depending on the
actual credentials of the teachers ILA hires, the final master schedule may vary.

Year one: 74 students total in 6™ and 7™ grades

Block | Block |Block |Block |Block |Block | PE | Advisory
A B C D E F

Teacher | Eng6 |SS6 Eng6 |SS6 Eng7 |SS7 Prep | Prep

1

Teacher | Math6 | Art7 | Prep Math | Prep Math | PE6 | Ad6

2 7 6

Teacher | Sci7 Sci 6 Sci 6 Prep Art6 |Prep |PEG6|Ad6

3

Teacher | Prep Prep Music | Music | Music | Art6 |PE7|Ad7

4 7 6 6

64




IILA.6 | Although the Petition states | This finding is false. ~As is evident in the master schedule above for year one, each
that teachers will be provided | teacher has two teaching periods free for lesson preparation and student assessment,
with daily time for as well as three dedicated hours a week for staff collaboration and professional
collaboration, none is built
) ; development.
into the daily schedules
E,re(:;;'igid n(;rr;jaetsi\%lgﬁ(; 'I? itshe In year two, when the staff expands to seven teachers, teachers will have common prep
therefore unclear how such | Periods to engage in collaborative planning of interdisc_iplinary PBL units in addition
seemingly integral work can | t0 the three dedicated hours weekly for staff collaboration.
be integrated within the ) _
school/work day as Below is a sample master schedule for year two and 125 students. Depending on the
presented. Release time for | actual credentials of the teachers ILA hires, the final master schedule may vary.
teachers to do things such
as observe other teachers Block |Block |Block |Block |Block |Block |PE | Advisory
and obtain outside training A B C D E F
does not represent
collaboration time and only Ieacher Eng6 |SS6 Eng6 |SS6 Eng7 | Prep Prep | Ad 6
further increases the time
necessary for teachers to Teacher |Eng7 |[SS7 Eng8 |SS8 Prep SS7 Prep | Ad 7
share and integrate 2
strategies learned into the Teacher Math 6 | Art7 Prep Math 7 Prep Math6 | PE6 | AD 7
instructional program being || 3
delivered Teacher | Sci7 Sci6 | Sci6 Prep Art6 | Prep PE6 | AD6

4

Teacher | Music | Prep Music | Music | Music | Music | Prep | AD7
5 8 7 6 6 7

Teacher | PE7 Prep Prep Math 7 | Math 8 | Art7 PE7 | ADS8
6

Teacher | Prep Sci 8 Sci 7 Prep Art7 | Art8 PE8 | ADS8
7

IILA.7 | Given the program design In the response to 1.A. above, we have provided a meaningful description of how

and aspirations set forth in

teachers will be supported to prepare integrated units across the core and non-core

65




the Petition, including
Petitioners'
acknowledgment that a
majority of the Charter
School's students will likely
be entering performing
below grade-level
proficiencies in both ELA
and Math, there is no
meaningful description of
how teachers will be able
to prepare integrated units
across the core and non-
core academic subjects
that address all of the
required standards at all
grade levels and successful
implementation of the
instructional strategies
described in the Petition
while meeting the needs of
such under- performing
students. Student
performance goals thus
appear unrealistic given
the proposed staffing,
student enrollment, and
related budget assumptions
provided.

academic subjects that address all of the required standards across all grade levels
and to successfully implement the instructional strategies described in the Petition
while meeting the needs of such under-performing students.

Also, project-based instruction naturally accommodates differentiation of the learning
activity, text or project assessment to match individual learning needs and abilities.
Because ILA teachers have small class sizes and will teach the same students in
multiple periods, ILA teachers will have the time and support necessary to fulfill the
expectation that below-grade-level students in their classes will receive personalized
teaching and experience academic success. In addition, daily advisory periods offer
each student valuable one-on-one time with a teacher who is responsible for
understanding and providing instruction and support tailored to the student’s
learning modalities and academic needs.

1.A.8

Although Petitioners state
that they have dropped

In alignment with its focus on integrative education, ILA will offer music and art to all
students. The curriculum will follow the California Standards for Visual Arts and

66




GLAD and Visual and
Performing Arts (VAPA) as
discrete educational
program components, the
student schedule continues
to include dedicated blocks
of weekly instruction in
music and art in all
grades, and at levels
(instructional minutes)
nearly equivalent to
instructional minute
offerings in each of the
core academic subject
areas (English Language
Arts, Math, Social Science,
and Science) without
sufficient detail regarding
proposed curriculum. The
Petition also discusses
employment of dedicated
art and music teachers.

Music in the areas of 1) artistic perception, 2) creative expression, 3) historical and
cultural contexts, 4) aesthetic valuing, and 5) connections, relationships and
applications. The specific course content will vary depending on the skills and
abilities of the ILA teachers hired. As the ILA faculty increases in numbers, teachers
will be able to specialize in one or two content areas, and more teachers with single-
subject credentials can be hired.

I1.A.9

A key component of the
program set forth in the
Petition indicates that
Transcendental
Meditation®, mindfulness,
positive mindset, and Quiet
Time will be key to
preparing students for
school success. While
Petitioners provide research

This finding is false. The research on Quiet Time (Appendix A) clearly references
improved student educational achievement (see page 2 of Appendix A) and the
statistical analysis is based on “randomized controlled trials, matched controlled
studies, unmatched controlled studies, and descriptive studies” (See page 2 of
Appendix A) and not only on “perception surveys” as the finding falsely states.

67




regarding the benefits of
meditation, the Petition
continues to be lacking in
evidence-based research
demonstration that
meditation improves student
educational achievement in
the grade levels to be served.
Perception surveys indicate
personal feelings and are not
conclusive objective findings
with statistical application for
educators.

11.B.1

The Charter School's five
year budget is dependent
upon $2,400,000 of soft
money (grants/fundraising)
which is 28% of the total
projected operating
expenses during the period,
with first year budget
contingent upon soft money
equivalent to 41% of the
annual budget. Given the
stated budget and
assumptions, a $52,000
reserve is necessary in
order to ensure a 5%
required reserve for
economic uncertainties in
year one. Should actual
expenses exceed or revenues
decrease by $63,000 or
more, Petitioners will be

This finding is false for multiple reasons. The five-year budget for years 1-5 of the
school’s operation shows $2,000,000 in fundraising, with the amount of fundraising
decreasing by $25,000 each year. Fundraising represents 41% of the budget in year
one but decreases to only 15% by year five. Furthermore, this finding ignores the
nearly $350,000 surplus in the budget by year five, which, when taken into account,
reduces fundraising income to less than 20% of the total projected operating expenses
during years 1-5. Finally, this finding incorrectly concludes that the $114,000 surplus
at the end of year 1 is insufficient to meet the necessary $52,000 reserve for economic
uncertainties.

68




unable to meet their reserve
requirements. Further,
given that Petitioners are
assuming 100% of projected
enrollment and the many
fixed expenses required to
be budgeted, long-term
financial stability and
viability is of concern with
such substantial reliance on
soft money

11.B.2

The information provided in
the Petition indicates that
the identified facility (Camp
Harmon) requires several
improvements before the
Charter School can assume
occupancy and begin
operations. The appraisal
included in the Petition lists
reroofing and water damage
repairs, ADA accessibility
upgrades through the
cabins, lodge, parking lot
and pathways, shear
walling, septic and fire
alarms. The Petition
provides no explanation of
how the -identified
improvements, including a
required zoning change, will
be made and/or any timeline
for these improvements to
be completed prior to

ILA has already begun the process to work with Camp Harmon on the necessary
facility improvement projects, and has ample time between now and August 2019 to
complete these repairs. ILA does not anticipate needing a temporary facility in
addition to Camp Harmon, but should one be necessary, ILA has had two other sites
fully vetted by a schools architect and structural engineer. (Please Appendix Q for the
schools architect and structural engineer’s reports.)

The ILA start-up budget contains $110,000 (line 5820) for general contractors to
complete the necessary repairs. In addition, ILA has filed for a $1000 consultation
with the Santa Cruz Planning Department to determine whether the existing land use
permits for Camp Harmon are consistent with ILA’s school use. Regardless of the
Santa Cruz Planning Department’s determination, San Lorenzo Valley Unified School
District has the authority under Government Code 53094 to exempt classroom
facilities from a zoning ordinance.

69




occupancy. Lacking these
repairs, the facility is not
suitable. The costs
associated with these
repairs are also not
adequately reflected in the
budget. Given that the
Petition still indicates
aspirations to open for the
2018-2019 school year (with
a proposed instructional
calendar indicatinga first
day of school on August 20,
2018), there is no way all of
the required facility
improvements can be
completed, particularly
when Petitioners include
explicit assurances that they
will be in full compliance
with all applicable state and
federal facility accessibility
requirements. Should school
opening need to be deferred
or located at a temporary
location while necessary
repairs are made, there is
no discussion regarding
details, contingency plans,
and/or the impact of such
actions may have on budget
and operations

70




11.B.3 | The actual cost of renting the | This finding is false. This reference is to a comment made by a member of the
facility was represented to be | community during the Public Hearing at the June 13" SLVUSD Board Meeting, and
$200,000 per year according | does not reference any written statement provided in the Petition.
to the Camp Harmon
Director who spoke to the Furthermore, the conclusion is false as the $200,000 for yearly facility costs payable to
Board at the District Board . . . .

. Camp Harmon is present in the 5-year budget. Please see Appendix B, line 5610,
meeting held on June 13, o ) L . .
2018. This rental fee is not rent”, which increases from $101,928 in year one to $205,248 by year five. In
reflected in the budget. addition, line 5530 of the budget, “utilities,” which is between $35,000 and $40,000 per
year, also represents funds payable to Camp Harmon as part of the leasing agreement.

I1.B.4 | There is no discussion or This finding is false. Food service provisions through the full kitchen at Camp
details [sic] regarding how | Harmon are discussed in the Miscellaneous Element and provided for in the 5-year
food services will be provided | Budget under “Student food services.” (See Appendix B, line 4710.) Camp Harmon
and no provision in the kitchen staff will serve the food, not ILA staff members.
budget for staff to serve the
meals and snacks described
in the Petition.

I1.LB.5 | The budgeted start up This finding is false. The budgeted start-up allocation for technology and equipment
allocation for technology and | js $37,750, which includes $27,750 of start-up funds (per line 4420 of the 5-year Budget
equipment is inadequate in Appendix B) in addition to the yearly allocation of $250 per student (per line 4420
given thegducggoggl ] of the 5-year Budget in Appendix B) which will allow the purchase of a Chromebook
program described in the or similar laptop for every student. The total funds of $37,750 are sufficient to
Petition. At $250 per student, . ;

o I . provide the STEAM-related technology necessary to successfully implement a
it is unrealistically low in
light of the basic technology STEAM-PBL program.
required to successfully
implement a STEAM
program.
I1ILA.1 | The Petition's information See response to I.A. above.

on and plan for professional
development is inadequate
as described above

71




I.A.2

The Petition does not
provide a specific plan for
how the Charter School
will phase in grade levels
and does not include
adequate information on
proposed grade level
programs. Although the
Charter School intends to
offer both 6™ and 7" grades
in its first year of operation,
there is no mention of the
completely different 7™
grade standards and
curriculum to be used.

This finding is false. The 7t grade standards and curriculum to be used are described
in the Curriculum and Instruction section of of Element A (pages 17-22, 30-33, 39-48);
in Table 15 in Element A (pages 51-53) that gives a curriculum summary for each
content area and each grade level; in Appendix E that has sample STEAM unit
samples for all grade levels; and in Appendix G that has the scope and sequence table
for all subject areas.

I.A.3.

Petitioners have not
demonstrated the necessary
background and/or
experience regarding the
needs of English Learners
and the plan for meeting the
needs of English Learners is
not well-explained.
Specifically, training for
teachers in specially
designed academic
instruction in English
(SDAIE) is not mentioned at
all, other than an assurance
that teachers will have
CLAD certification and that
one day of professional
development in November,

See response to I.A. above.

The principal, who was formerly the ELPAC coordinator for more than a dozen
schools operated by the Santa Clara County Office of Education, will continue to
participate in the yearly ELPAC training and will administer the ELPAC at ILA.

As the petition states, ILA will follow the classification criteria consistent with the
Charter Authorizer.

72




with no specifics, will be
provided. The Petition
further fails to mention who
will administer the ELPAC,
which requires extensive
training for administration
and scoring. Classification
criteria is also unclear

I.A.4

Although Project GLAD was
represented as being
removed from the program,
Section 2 at page 63 of the
Petition provides that
professional development
will still be provided for
Project GLAD and EL
Achieve, again without a
timeline, details, or outline.

Project GLAD has been removed from the program and the single reference to this
program and EL Achieve is a typographical error.

IHLA.S

How the Petitioners will
respond to students not
achieving at or above
expected grade levels is
undefined beyond
statements that it will
happen through in school
interventions, after school
tutoring, and summer
school. No specifics are
provided to describe what
the interventions will be,
what materials will be used,
etc

As stated in the petition (Element A, page 63), teachers will use benchmark
assessments to regularly monitor student progress. Those students performing
significantly below grade level will receive interventions during the school day, in
addition to differentiated instruction. At the end of each day, students will meet with
their advisor to receive individual support and assistance with schoolwork and
homework.

In addition, after school tutoring may be offered to all students performing below
proficiency on grade level language arts and math assessments as indicated by
multiple measures including unit assessments, standardized testing, and other school
assessments.

As an added support for struggling students, Student Success Teams (SSTs) will
convene to discuss student needs and implement necessary interventions. The SST

73




team consists of 4-5 key stakeholders, including administration, parents and
guardians, advisors, classroom teachers, and any members of the special education
and mental health teams.

Once a student is identified as not making appropriate growth academically as
measured by the schools’ assessment data (see Element C for a discussion of tools), or
a student is struggling socially or emotionally, the SST will meet to develop an in-class
intervention plan that clarifies that student’s current level of performance, documents
areas of concern, and outlines a specific plan to differentiate, modify, and
individualize instruction for the student.

The SST collects information on student needs via a uniform, comprehensive referral
form that teachers use when concerns arise about a student’s academic, behavioral, or
social-emotional challenges. The SST conducts a comprehensive analysis and
incorporates data from home, and from other teachers across the school. An
intervention plan is developed for the child that outlines the areas of strength, areas of
concern, and a strategic plan to support that student. The SST discusses teacher
referrals, triaging students for more in-depth discussion and matching them with
correct support services, including supportive interventions that can be implemented
by teachers within the classroom.

Modifications or accommodations could include changing seat assignments,
implementing strategic grouping, giving fewer, more targeted assignments or
problems, or providing additional resources or tools to complete an assignment (a
calculator, computer, etc.), or providing a differentiated text, learning activity or
assessment tailored to the student’s individual learning needs.

The SST also completes periodic reviews for students who have been assigned to
specific interventions. Advisors for students are expected to maintain open
communication with each family, including sharing team discussion, proposed
interventions, and inviting families to SST meetings as appropriate.

74




If a student makes inadequate progress in the classroom or across classrooms as
measured by the school assessment data, the SST would reconvene to access more the
school’s resources for addressing the specific student’s challenges and to ensure the
group has greater understanding of the whole child.

SSTs also spend time focusing on school-wide academic, behavioral and social-
emotional data (including academic assessment scores, office discipline referral data,
and attendance rates) to determine priorities, establish thresholds for different levels
of intervention and match resources to needs.

[11.LA.6 | The proposed social The proposed socio-emotional learning (Life Skills) curriculum is for middle school
emotional learning students. The Petition mentions School Connect, a well-known high school life skills
(Lifeskills) [sic] curriculumis | curriculum that will serve as a reference point for developing our middle school
for high school-aged curriculum.
students.

I11.A.7. | The Petition fails to address | The Petitioners are deeply committed to implementing the requirements of the Fair

how the Charter School will
implement the requirements
of the Fair Education Act, to
include contributions of
underrepresented racial,
ethnic, and cultural groups
to economic, political, and
social developments within
the Social Science
curriculum. Likewise, there
is no mention of how the
Charter School will satisfy
the requirements of the
California Healthy Youth
Act to provide
comprehensive sexual

Education Act, to include contributions of underrepresented racial, ethnic, and
cultural groups to economic, political, and social developments within the Social
Science curriculum.

ILA will satisfy the requirements of the California Healthy Youth Act and provide
comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education within its science
and/or advisory curriculum. More research is needed to determine the
appropriate curriculum for ILA’s students and the final decision of where to
embed this curriculum will depend on teacher certification, expertise and ability
to deliver the comprehensive sexual health and HIV prevention education
required by law.

75




health and HIV prevention
education.

111.B.1

The Petition references an
unfamiliar data warehousing
system and fails to describe
what staff will be trained in
its use in order to enter data
and run all of the reports
necessary for teacher
evaluation of the
effectiveness of the
instructional strategies
being utilized.

This finding is false and confusing given that the data warehousing system referenced
in the Petition (Pearson’s PowerSchool) is currently used by the San Lorenzo Valley
Unified School District.

111.B.2

The Petition does not
include a sample report
card and despite indicating
that the Charter School will
use a rubric system to
evaluate progress, there are
no criteria or rubrics
included for the assessments
identified in the Petition,
including exhibitions,
portfolios, or student-led
conferences. Although a
letter grade system is
provided in the Student
Handbook, how such grades
will be determined using an
undefined rubric system
remains unknown.
Alignment with state and

ILA will employ a traditional report card for each grading period, where students
receive one grade for English, one for math, one for science and so on, along with
personalized teacher comments. As described in the Student and Family Handbook,
teachers will use a percentage system to assign letter grades to students. For example,
students earning 90% or more of class points will be eligible to receive an “A” letter
grade for that class period. However, ILA staff will also develop and use standard-
based rubrics to assess interdisciplinary PBL assessments. These rubrics will allow
teachers to evaluate the set of discrete skills and knowledge that students are
responsible for learning and exhibiting mastery of through an interdisciplinary
project. Rubrics give students detailed information about their actual performance
relative to content standards, much more information than a simple letter grade or a
set of points. For each skill indicated, the rubric describes the current level of student
mastery and indicates the necessary steps to improve mastery. Rubric scores are then
reduced to points and letter grades for inclusion in a teacher’s grade book and
eventually on students’ report cards.

76




federal college and career
readiness requirements is
accordingly in question

.c.1

While the Petition states that
the Charter School and its
Board Board of Directors
will comply with the Brown
Act and the Political Reform
Act, the bylaws do not
preclude interested directors
from financially benefitting
from the Charter School’s
operations, including service
as vendors to the Charter
School. Given that one of the
main components of the
program — Transcendental
Meditation © or Quiet Time —
requires implementation of
Center for Wellness and
Achievement in Education
(CWAE) proprietary
programs, which generally
come at a cost to educational
institutions and a majority of
the Charter School’s Board
of Directors are also
directors of CWAE, the
governance team members’
parent organization will
appear to realize financial
benefits from its business with
and seemingly meaningful

This finding is false. The claim that “a majority of the Charter School’s Board of
Directors are also directors of CWAE” is false; only two members of the ILA Board of
Directors are also members of the governing board of CWAE. The members of the
ILA Board of Directors can be seen at https://www.ilapublicschools.org/our-team/

Furthermore, the Charter School’s Conflict of Interest Policy (Appendix J2) clearly
prohibits the Charter School Board of Directors and their businesses from any
financial gain or benefits connected to the operations of ILA.

77




control over the Charter
School.

1.D.1

The Petition includes a
Health and Safety
Handbook which includes
general protocols for
emergency situations and
other health and safety
concerns. However, as set
forth above, critical health
and safety issues do not
appear to be sufficiently
addressed, as the budget
does not include sufficient
funds to cover the cost of
facility upgrades necessary
to bring the proposed
facility (Camp Harmon) into
compliance with the ADA
and applicable state
building codes. Given the
Petition's ambitious goal of
opening for fall 2018, the
lack of detailed repair
requirements, plan and
timeline for implementation,
intent to complete repairs,
and associated resources
identified to fund such
necessary upgrades,
student, staff, and
community health and safety
appears to be at risk

This finding is false. The start-up budget for the School contains $110,000 for site
improvements for Camp Harmon,

Furthermore, the school has almost a full calendar year to complete the proposed
facility upgrades.

78




I1LE.1 | The Petition toggles back and | This finding is false and based on a misunderstanding of AHP qualifications.
forth between hearings before | Pursuant to EDC 35146, the Charter School cannot appoint its own teachers to the
the Board and Administrative | Administrative Hearing Panel; the AHP can be three of more certificated persons,
Hearing Panel, while none of whom can be a member of the governing board, or employed on the staff of
seemingly indicating an AHP | 40 <ok in which the pupil is enrolled. There is no evidence to support the claim
Process preference, with no that ILA would not be able to appoint three impartial credentialed people who meet
acknowledgement that the o
Charter School will lack a these criteria.
sufficient number of
certificated teachers meeting
AHP qualifications in order
to convene an expulsion
panel.

[11.E.2. | Student suspension and Student suspension and expulsion procedures are based on California Education

expulsion procedures also
appear to be almost wholly
generic/boilerplate, with
updated statutory language
merely cut and pasted into
the narrative set forth in
Section J, without any
meaningful attempt made to
contextualize the
information and/or connect
the language to the overall
policy in an understandable
way. As a result, there is
some confusion regarding
procedures, and references
to "involuntary removals”
other than for disciplinary
reasons as triggering
additional yet undefined due

codes. The Petitioners have been careful to use the exact language of the law to ensure
that the school’s suspension and expulsion procedures are wholly in compliance with
California Education codes.

Furthermore, there are no instances where student removals would be permissible
short of expulsion or consecutive absences in excess of 10 days.

79




process/hearing rights when
there do not otherwise
appear to be any instances
described in the Petition
where removals would be
permissible short of
expulsion or consecutive
absences in excess of 10
school days

80




BP 0420.4

CHARTER SCHOOL AUTHORIZATION

It is the objective of the County Board of Education (CBE) that teachers, parents, pupils and
community members may petition the CBE to approve a charter school, and that the CBE shall
review such petitions in accordance with the letter and spirit of the law. This policy shall also
pertain, as applicable, to petitions denied by the Governing Board of a school district and
subsequently submitted to the Santa Cruz County Office of Education (SCCOE).

The CBE encourages SCCOE administrators to work cooperatively with parents, teachers,
students, community members, and principals in their efforts to design Charter Schools to
improve student learning.

These schools shall operate under the provisions of their charters, specific state and/or federal
laws, Title 5, California Code of Regulations adopted by the State Board of Education, and
general oversight of and agreements with the chartering authority.

While maximizing operational flexibility, the charter school petition shall include
compliance-based components or other provisions mandated by law. The County
Superintendent of Schools shall establish administrative regulations for the process of
submission, review, evaluation, and preparation of written findings for a charter petition
submitted to the CBE prior to CBE action. The administrative regulations shall include:

. Specific details for the granting or denying of a charter petition.

. The process for submitting a charter petition.

. Guidelines to determine if a charter petition is consistent with the intent of the law and
sound educational practice to accomplish the goals and objectives of the Charter School
Act.

. Direction for performing a critical evaluation of the soundness of the proposed

educational program and the likeliness of its successful implementation.
. A process to ensure sound fiscal solvency and procedures.

. A plan for effective parental involvement in curricular and extra-curricular (school
related) activities.

The CBE shall ensure that any approved charter contains adequate processes and measures for
holding the school accountable for fulfilling the terms of its charter. These shall include, but not
be limited to, fiscal accountability systems, multiple measures for evaluating the educational
program, and regular reports to the CBE.

The CBE believes that the continuing operation of a charter school should be dependent on the
school's effectiveness in achieving its mission and goals for student learning, including student
achievement for all numerically significant student subgroups served by the charter school.

81



Denial of Petition

A charter petition shall be denied only if the CBE presents written factual findings specific to the
petition that one or more of the following conditions exist: (Education Code 47605)

. The charter school presents an unsound educational program for the students to be
enrolled in the charter school.

. The petitioners are demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program set
forth in the petition.

. The petition does not contain the number of signatures required.

. The petition does not contain an affirmation of each of the conditions described in
Education Code 47605(d).

. The petition does not contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of the charter
provisions in Education Code 47605(b).

The CBE shall not deny a petition based on the actual or potential costs of serving students with
disabilities, nor shall it deny a petition solely because the charter school might enroll disabled
students who reside outside the special education local plan area in which the district
participates. (Education Code 47605.7, 47647)

Further, the CBE shall deny any petition to authorize the conversion of a private school to a
charter school or that proposes to serve students in a grade level that is not served by the
SCCOE, unless the petition proposes to serve students in all the grade levels served by the
SCCOE. (Education Code 47602, 47605; 5 CCR 11965)

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

220 Nondiscrimination

17078.52-17078.66 Charter schools facility funding; state bond proceeds
17280-17317 Field Act

17365-17374 Field Act, fitness for occupancy

41365 Charter school revolving loan fund

42238.51-42238.53 Funding for charter districts

44237 Criminal record summary

44830.1 Certificated employees, conviction of a violent or serious felony
45122.1 Classified employees, conviction of a violent or serious felony
46201 Instructional minutes

47600-47616.7 Charter Schools Act of 1992

47640-47647 Special education funding for charter schools
47650-47652 Funding of charter schools

51745-51749.3 Independent study

53300-53303 Parent Empowerment Act

56026 Special education

56145-56146 Special education services in charter schools

82



CORPORATIONS CODE

5110-6910 Nonprofit public benefit corporations
GOVERNMENT CODE

3540-3549.3 Educational Employment Relations Act
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5

4800-4808 Parent Empowerment Act
11700.1-11705 Independent study

11960-11969 Charter schools

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 24

101 et seq. California Building Standards Code

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20

6316 Program improvement
7223-7225 Charter schools

COURT DECISIONS

Ridgecrest Charter School v. Sierra Sands Unified School District, (2005) 130 Cal.App.4th 986
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS

89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 166 (2006)

80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 52 (1997)

78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 297 (1995)

Management Resources:

CSBA PUBLICATIONS

The Role of the Charter School Authorizer, Online Course

Charter Schools: A Manual for Governance Teams, rev. 2009

Charter School Facilities and Proposition 39: Legal Implications for School Districts, 2005

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS

Sample Copy of a Memorandum of Understanding
Special Education and Charter Schools: Questions and Answers, September 10, 2002

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION GUIDANCE

Charter Schools Program, July 2004
The Impact of the New Title | Requirements on Charter Schools, July 2004

83



WEB SITES

CSBA: http://www.csba.org

California Charter Schools Association: http://www.calcharters.org

California Department of Education, Charter Schools: http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/cs
National Association of Charter School Authorizers: http://www.charterauthorizers.org
U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov

Originally Adopted: May 17, 2018

84



BP 0420.4

Exhibit |
Notice of Intent to Submit Charter School Application
PETITION FOR ESTABLISHMENT OF A CHARTER SCHOOL
[]  Appeal submission following denial by a district DATE STAMP

[] Petition submitted directly to the County Board
(Countywide Charter or County Operated Charter)

[] Charter Renewal Petition/Last Renewal:

CHARTER SCHOOL INFORMATION

Name of proposed charter school:

General location (including district) of proposed charter school:

Projected grade levels:

Projected Enrollment:

Goal date for opening school:

LEAD PETITIONER CONTACT INFORMATION

Name of lead petitioner:
(Please attach biographical information)

Address (City, State, Zip):

Daytime Phone Numbers: Fax:

Email Address:

CHARTER DEVELOPMENT TEAM MEMBERS

CERTIFICIATION

Print Name: Signature: Date:
Print Name: Signature: Date:
Print Name: Signature: Date:

OFFICE USE ONLY

Print Name: Signature: Date:

85




AR 0420.4

REVIEW OF CHARTER SCHOOL PETITIONS

The California Legislature established the Charter Schools Act of 1992 (Chapter 781, Statutes of
1992), as amended, to provide opportunities for students, teachers, parents, and community
members to establish and maintain nonsectarian schools that operate independently from the
existing school structure. Charter schools are considered part of the Public School System as
defined in Article IX of the California Constitution and under the exclusive control of the
officers of the public schools. [Education Code (E.C.) 47615 (a)(1)(2)]

The chartering authority for approving a charter school in a district is the governing board (the
Board). In a county office of education, the chartering authority is the Santa Cruz County Board
of Education (County Board).

Accordingly, in order to implement state law fully and fairly, to comply with the Santa Cruz
County Office of Education's (SCCOE) Board Policy (BP) 0420.4 and to provide petitioner(s)
with a thorough description of how the county shall meet its obligations under the law, the
following are procedures to establish or renew a charter school:

I HOW CHARTERS ARE ORIGINATED AND FUNDED

The law recognizes two “types” of charter school: 1) Conversion charter schools and 2)
Start-up charter schools. In the vernacular, charters are sometimes referred to as
“dependent” and “independent.”

A “Dependent charters” are typically created by converting an existing school
(Conversion Charter). It usually remains closely affiliated with the authorizing
school district or county office.

B. “Independent charters” are typically start-up charters that are formed by
parents, teachers, community members or charter management organizations
(Start-Up Charter). Most of these charters operate as non-profit corporations.

C. Locally funded charter schools receive their funds through the school district or
county office that granted the charter. Most “conversion” charters receive their
funding in this manner.

D. Direct funded charter schools elect to receive their funding directly from the
County Superintendent of the county in which the authorizing board is located,
making them truly “independent.” [Charter Schools: A Manual for Governance
Teams, CSBA 2009]

Il. SOURCES OF CHARTER SCHOOL PETITIONS TO THE COUNTY BOARD

The County Board may receive charter school petitions in several ways:

A On appeal, if a local district board denies a petition application that was submitted
to it for original approval. [E.C. 47605(j)(1)]

86



AR 0420.4

REVIEW OF CHARTER SCHOOL PETITIONS

Page 2

On appeal, if the granting board denies a request for renewing the charter upon
the termination of its contract period. [E.C.47607.5]

On appeal, if the granting board revokes the charter before its scheduled
termination date.[E.C. 47607(f)(1)]

On a direct filing, if the intent is to establish a countywide charter: This charter
school may operate at one or more sites within the geographical boundaries of the
county to provide instructional services that are not generally provided by a
county office of education. The County Board may only approve a countywide
charter if it finds, in addition to other requirements to this section of Education
Code, that the educational services provided by the charter school will offer
services to a pupil population that will benefit from those services and that cannot
be served as well by a charter that operates in only one district in the county.
[E.C. 47605.6(a)(1)]

On a direct filing for a charter school that will serve pupils for whom the County
Office would otherwise be responsible for providing direct education and related
services. [E.C. 47605.5]

By assignment from the State Board of Education. The SBE may, by mutual
agreement, designate its supervisorial and oversight responsibilities for a charter
school approved by the SBE to any local education agency in the county in which
the charter school is located or to the governing board that first denied the
petition. [E.C. 47605(k)(1)]

SUBMITTING A CHARTER SCHOOL PETITION

A.

Submission of Notice of Intent

Charter school petitioners who wish to submit a petition to create a charter school
or appeal a denial or revocation by the school district should file a Notice of
Intent (see BP 0420.4 Exhibit 1) to the County Superintendent at least 2 weeks
prior to submitting the charter petition. The County Superintendent or designee
shall respond to the petitioners that the Notice of Intent has been received.

Note: Prior to the submission of the petition, the Santa Cruz County
Superintendent of Schools (County Superintendent) may authorize a coordinator
to work with the charter school petitioners in order to gather information about
the proposal and suggest components that would align the petition with student
learning and existing education code requirements. The County Superintendent
may also appoint a coordinator and staff advisory committee to evaluate the
substance of the petition once it meets the minimum eligibility requirements listed
below.

87



AR 0420.4

REVIEW OF CHARTER SCHOOL PETITIONS

Page 3

Submission of Charter and Petition

The proposed charter shall be attached to the petition [E.C. 47605 (a)(3)], and
must set forth all of the elements of a charter and include or refer to such
information as will enable the county office staff and County Board to complete
the review process and affirmations [E.C. 47605 (a)-(h) and (I)]. Petitioners are
required to submit 15 copies of the charter petition to the County Superintendent.

It is the responsibility of the Petitioners to cross check paginations and to assure
that page numbers are legible and are printed in correct sequence prior to
submitting the petition.

PRELIMINARY REVIEW

The SCCOE Staff will conduct a preliminary review in preparation for the formal receipt
of the petition by the County Board. The purpose of the Preliminary Review is to confirm
receipt of all required documents to determine if the charter and the petition are complete
and legally compliant. The preliminary review will verify the following items:

A

The number of required petition signatures as stated by E.C. 47605 (a). (The
signatures requirement set forth in E.C. 47605 (a) is not applicable to a charter
petition renewal).

The charter is not a conversion of any private school to a charter school. [E.C.
47602 (b)]

Required Affirmations: Statement that school will be non-sectarian in its
programs, admission policies, employment practices, and all other operations, will
not charge tuition, and will not discriminate against any pupil on the basis of
ethnicity, national origin, gender or disability.

Geographical and Site Limitations: Does the Petition propose to operate a single
charter school within the county, a countywide charter, or in the case of a charter
proposal initially denied by a local governing board, within the geographic
jurisdiction of the school district to which the charter was originally submitted?

Effective Date: Does the Petition demonstrate that the charter school will
commence operation by September 30 of its first year of operation?

Financial Reports: Does the Petition include all required financial reports per
E.C. 47605 (g), namely: a proposed first-year operational budget including start-
up costs; a cash flow statement; and financial projections for the first three years
of operation?

88



AR 0420.4

REVIEW OF CHARTER SCHOOL PETITIONS

Page 4
G. Required Supplementary Information: Does the petition include the required

supplemental information as stated by E.C. 47605 (d)(1) and (g).

H. If the charter is appealing a denial by a District, the preliminary review will
include all the following requirements: [California Code of Regulations (CCR)

Title 5 11967 (a) (1-4)]

1. A charter petition that has been previously denied by the governing board
of a school district must be received by the County Board not later than
180 calendar days after the denial.

2. A complete copy of the charter petition as denied, including the signatures
required by Education Code section 47605.

3. Evidence of the governing board's action to deny the petition (e.g. meeting
minutes) and the governing board's written factual findings specific to the
particular petition, when available, setting forth specific facts to support
one or more of the grounds for denial set forth in E.C. 47605(b).

4, A signed certification stating that petitioner(s) will comply with all
applicable law.

5. A description of any changes to the petition necessary to reflect the
County Board as the chartering entity.

When the preliminary review is complete, the Petitioner will be notified of the

next regularly scheduled County Board meeting when the County Board will

formally receive the Petition. A public hearing will be scheduled within 30 days
of this formal receipt date of the petition, or within 60 days for a countywide
charter school.

If the charter petition is incomplete, the Petitioner will be notified in writing with

specifications and reason (s) for rejecting the charter and petition. The Petitioner

will then have to make arrangements to resubmit the Petition at a later regular
scheduled County Board Meeting date.
V. IN-DEPTH REVIEW OF CHARTER PETITION BY THE SCCOE STAFF

After the Preliminary Review has been conducted and the petition is deemed complete
the lead project coordinator/administrator and other SCCOE Staff members appointed by
the County Superintendent and representing the different operational specialties, will
perform the following in-depth review of the charter’s documents:

A.

Validate the petition signature requirements set forth in [E.C 47605 (a)(1)(A) &
(B)]

&9



AR 0420.4
REVIEW OF CHARTER SCHOOL PETITIONS

Page 5

B. Validate Geographic and Site Limitations. A classroom based charter petition
submitted directly to the County Board, as authorized by E.C 47605.5 or 47605.6
may operate only within the territorial jurisdiction of the County Board. [E.C.
47605.1 (f)] However, petitions for independent study charters, whether
characterized as home study or otherwise, may include pupils of Santa Cruz
County and residents of immediately adjacent counties. [E.C. 51747.3]

C. Validate required affirmations. [E.C. 47605 (d) (1) and (g)]

D. Verify effective dates (start and ending dates of school and proposed school
calendar).

E. Verify 15 required elements [E.C. 47605(b)(5)(A-O)]. For countywide charters,
there are 16 required elements [E.C. 47605.6 (b)(5) (A-P)].

F. Verify required supplemental information per Ed Code 47605 (g):

1. A proposed first-year operational budget including start-up costs; a cash
flow statement; financial projections for the first three years of operation;
facilities to be used; administrative services to be provided. [E.C. 47605

(9)]

2. Proposed Operation and Potential Effects (Impact Statement).
G. Verify required Special Education/ SELPA Services [E.C. 47640-47647]

H. Verify that the charter school will provide the minimum number of minutes of
instruction each fiscal year as required by E.C. 47612.5.

The required elements will be reviewed using a Petition Review Checklist (Matrix). The
petition needs to contain a reasonably comprehensive description of the elements
principally, that define educational goals, measurable student outcomes, student selection
process, and the governance structure of the charter school and other components.

Petitions are required to include charter assurances that contain a listing of all state and
federal laws, local laws and regulations that pertain to the applicant or the operation of
the charter school, statewide standards and assessments, non discriminatory clauses as
stated by California Education Code and Exclusive Public School Employer Declarations
[E.C. 47611.5(b)(c)], among other items.

Petitions should also include information regarding the proposed operation and potential

effects of the school, including, but not limited to, plans for facilities, fiscal allocation
plan, and how special education services shall be provided. [E.C. 42130 & 42131]

90



AR 0420.4
REVIEW OF CHARTER SCHOOL PETITIONS

Page 6

VI.

VII.

VIII.

PUBLIC HEARING

No later than 30 days after receiving the complete charter school petition, or 60 days in
the case of countywide charters, the County Board shall hold a public hearing on the
provisions of the charter petition. The level of support for the petition by teachers
employed by the county or district, other employees of the county or district, and parents
shall be considered. Charter petitioners shall appear and provide testimony to the County
Board. This hearing date, except for the countywide charters, may be extended 30 days if
both parties agree to the extension. [E.C. 47605(b)]

COUNTY BOARD DECISION DATE

Within 60 calendar days of receiving a valid petition, or 90 days for countywide charters,
the County Board shall either grant or deny the request to establish a charter school. The
date may be extended an additional 30 calendar days in either case upon the approval of
both parties. [E.C. 47605(b) and 47605.6(b)]

SCCOE Staff shall continue to organize activities, complete the comprehensive analysis
of the petition and present findings and recommendations to the County Board within the
timeframes. The findings and recommendations should be submitted to the County
Superintendent in sufficient time to be incorporated into the formal report that will be
presented to the County Board.

COUNTY BOARD APPROVAL/DENIAL

The County Board shall either grant or deny the petition at a duly noticed public meeting.
The County Superintendent shall officially communicate in writing the decision of the
County Board to the charter school petitioners. If approved, the initial term of the charter
may be granted up to 5 years.

If the County Board denies the charter petition, the communication shall include factual
findings, specific to the information and materials that were submitted, setting forth
specific facts under E.C. sections 47605(b)(1 through 5). For countywide charters, the
references are E.C. 47605.6(b)(1 through 6). The specific facts are shown below.

The governing board of a district or the County Board shall not deny a petition for the
establishment of charter school unless it makes written factual findings, specific to the
particular petition, setting forth specific facts to support one or more of the following
findings:

A The charter school presents an unsound educational program for the pupils to be
enrolled in a charter school.

B. The petitioners are demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program
set forth in the petition.

91



AR 0420.4

REVIEW OF CHARTER SCHOOL PETITIONS

Page 7

The petition does not contain the number of signatures required by E.C. 47605(a),
and E.C. 47605.6(a) for countywide schools.

The petition does not contain an affirmation of each of the conditions described in
E.C. 47605(d), and E.C. 47605.6(d) for countywide schools.

The petition does not contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of all of the
elements described in E.C 47605(b)(5)(A) through (O), and E.C.
47605.6(b)(5)(A) through (P) for countywide schools.

For_countywide charter school petitions only: Any other basis that the Board
finds is justification of denial of the petition. [E.C. 47605.6(b)(6)]

QUALIFYING/DISQUALIFYING CONDITIONS

The SCCOE staff will include any specific factual findings related to the following
conditions:

A.

The County Board shall not grant any charter that authorizes the conversion of a
private school to a charter school. [E.C. 47602 (b)]

The County Board shall not approve any charter petition that proposes to serve
students in a grade level that is not served by the SCCOE, (or district, if the Board
is requested to hear an appeal of a charter school that was denied by a district)
unless the charter petition proposes to serve pupils in all the grade levels served
by the SCCOE or the school district (whichever is applicable) [E.C. 47605(a)(6)].

The County Board shall not deny a petition based on the actual or potential costs
of serving students with disabilities, nor shall it deny a petition solely because the
charter school might enroll disabled students who reside outside the special
education local plan area (SELPA) in which the SCCOE (or the district)
participates. [E.C.47605.7]

The County Board cannot deny granting the charter because (a) approval may
cause financial hardship or (b) based on the actual or potential costs of serving
“individuals with exceptional needs”, (“Exceptional needs” is defined pursuant to
E.C.56026).

In granting charter petitions, the County Board shall give preference to schools
best able to provide comprehensive learning experiences of academically low-
achieving students. [E.C.47605.6 (i)]

Each charter school shall adhere to all laws establishing minimum age for public
school attendance.

92



AR 0420.4
REVIEW OF CHARTER SCHOOL PETITIONS

Page 8

XI.

G. The charter petition must specify that the charter school shall hold harmless and
indemnify the County Board and its officers, and the County Superintendent and
his/her officers and employees from any claim or demand of whatever nature,
including those based upon the negligence of the County Board and its officers,
and the County Superintendent and his/her officers and employees brought by any
person, institution, or organization.

H. The charter school, at its own cost, expense, and risk shall defend any legal
proceedings that may be brought against the County Board and its officers, and
the County Superintendent and his/her officers and employees, by any person,
including any institution or organization, on any claim or demand of whatever
nature arising out of the County Board granting a charter and shall satisfy any
judgment that may be rendered against any of them. The County Board and the
County Superintendent shall notify the charter school of the receipt of any such
claims or demands.

l. If the County Board grants a charter for the establishment of a charter school to be
operated by, or as, a nonprofit public benefit corporation, the County Board may
exercise its option to appoint a single representative on the board of directors of
the nonprofit public benefit corporation [E.C. 47604(b)]. It shall be the policy of
the County Board that any school representative, who may sit on the charter
school board of directors, be a non-voting member, avoiding any appearance of a
conflict of interest or interfering with the authority of the charter school board.

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

Upon the approval of a charter petition, a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is
developed between the charter school and the authorizing board to clarify financial and
operational issues. An MOU is not required by charter law but is strongly recommended.
It is usually negotiated during the petition approval process and, if approved by the
County Board shall become an addendum to the charter.

The MOU provides an opportunity for the County Board to spell out anything that was
not included in the original charter petition. It shall be reviewed annually and adjusted as
necessary. The SCCOE may request to expand on the legally required charter elements
or other required parts of the petition, or may request to include some of the items
discussed below. The MOU serves as a binding legal agreement between the County
Board, the SCCOE and the charter school to protect all parties. Therefore, it is important
to identify any matters for which the county office wants to hold the petitioners
accountable.

AUTHORIZER’S RESPONSIBILITIES ONCE THE CHARTER HAS BEEN
GRANTED

Once granted, the County Board, in addition to any other duties described in this
Administrative Regulations (AR), is required to do all of the following with respect to
each charter school under its authority:

93



AR 0420.4
REVIEW OF CHARTER SCHOOL PETITIONS

Page 9

XII.

A. Identify at least one staff member as a contact person for the charter school.

B. Visit each charter school at least annually.

C. Ensure that each charter school under its authority complies with all reports
required of charter schools by law.

D. Monitor the fiscal condition of each charter school under its authority.

E. Provide timely notification to the State Department of Education if any of the

following circumstances occur or will occur with regard to a charter school for
which it is the chartering authority:

1. A renewal of the charter is granted or denied.
2. The charter is revoked.
3. The charter school will cease operation for any reason.

The cost of performing the duties described above shall be funded with supervisorial
oversight fees collected pursuant to E.C. 47613. If the County Board authorizes a
countywide charter school, the Board may enter into an agreement with a third party, as a
condition to charter approval, to oversee, monitor, and report to the Board on the
operations of the charter school. The expense that may be incurred will be borne by the
charter school. [E.C.47605.6(c)]

REPORTS TO THE COUNTY BOARD
A. Budget/Financial Annual Reports [E.C. 47604.33(a)]

Each charter school shall submit the following reports to the County
Superintendent annually:

1. On or before July 1, a preliminary budget.

2. On or before December 15, an interim financial report reflecting changes
through October 31.
3. On or before March 15, a second interim financial report reflecting

changes through January 31.
4. On or before September 15, a final unaudited report for the full prior year.

The County Board shall use any financial information it obtains from the charter
school, including, but not limited to, the reports required by this section, to assess
the fiscal condition of the charter school.

The cost of performing the duties required by this section shall be funded with
supervisorial oversight fees collected pursuant to E.C.47613.

94



AR 0420.4

REVIEW OF CHARTER SCHOOL PETITIONS

Page 10

B. Financial Audit Report

A charter school shall transmit a copy of its annual, independent, financial audit
report for the preceding fiscal year to County Board, the Controller, and the
California Department of Education by December 15 of each year. This
subdivision does not apply if the audit of the charter school is encompassed in the
audit of the SCCOE. [E.C. 47605(m)]

C. Annual Report to the Board

Every year in May, the Charter Director shall present a report to the Board
regarding the charter’s Academic Performance and Fiscal Accountability.

XIl. CHARTER RENEWAL AND MATERIAL MODIFICATION OF AN APPROVED

CHARTER

A. Charter School Renewals

1.

Applications to renew or materially modify the charter shall include all the
same information, be processed in the same way, and be subject to
approval or denial on the same basis as proposals for new charter schools.
Any renewal approval shall be for a period of five years from the
expiration date of the charter. A material modification, when approved,
shall not affect the expiration date of the charter as originally approved.

The Petitioner shall file a Notice of Intent (see BP 0420.4 Exhibit 1) to
the County Superintendent at least 2 weeks prior to submitting the charter
petition renewal.

Following submission of the Notice of Intent, the petitioner may submit
the charter petition for renewal to the County Superintendent no later than
six months prior to the date of charter expiration. The County
Superintendent or designee shall respond to the petitioners that the Notice
of Intent has been received.

Legal Requirements: Charter school renewals must comply with the
standards and criteria in E.C. 47605 and 47607. A petition for renewal
must include the following:

a. Documentation that the charter school meets at least one of the
Renewal Criteria specified in E.C. 47607(b), (see below- Renewal
Criteria per E.C. 47607 (b))

b. A copy of the renewal charter petition including a reasonably
comprehensive description of how the charter school has met all
new charter school requirements enacted into law after the charter
was originally granted or last renewed.

95



AR 0420.4
REVIEW OF CHARTER SCHOOL PETITIONS
Page 11

C. The signature requirement set forth in E.C. 47605(a) is not
applicable to a petition for renewal.

d. Any material revisions of the provisions of the previously
approved charter.

XIV. RENEWAL CRITERIA PER E.C. 47607(b)
The Charter school must meet at least one of the following criteria:

A. (A) The school district or county office of education that granted the charter
determines that the academic performance of the charter school is at least equal to
the academic performance of the public schools that the charter school pupils
would otherwise have been required to attend, as well as the academic
performance of the schools in the school district in which the charter school is
located, taking into account the composition of the pupil population that is served
at the charter school.

(B) The determination made pursuant to this paragraph shall be based on all of the

following:

1. Documented clear and convincing data

2. Pupil achievement data from assessments, including, but not limited to,
the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress
(CAASPP).

3. Other information submitted by the charter school

(C) A chartering authority shall submit to the State Superintendent of Public
Instruction copies of supporting documentation and a written summary of the
basis for any determination made pursuant to this paragraph. The State
Superintendent of Public Instruction shall review the materials and make
recommendations to the chartering authority based on that review. The review
may be the basis for a recommendation made pursuant to E.C. 47604.5.

(D) A charter renewal may not be granted to a charter school prior to 30 days after
the charter school submits materials pursuant to this paragraph. Renewals and
material revisions of charters are governed by the standards and criteria in E.C.
47605 and 47607. Whenever a charter is renewed or a material revision is
granted, the charter petition must be revised to reflect any new requirement of
charter schools enacted into law after the charter was originally granted or last
renewed.

B. Has qualified for the Dashboard Alternative School Status (DASS) pursuant to
subdivision (h) of E.C. 52052.

96



AR 0420.4
REVIEW OF CHARTER SCHOOL PETITIONS
Page 12

XV.

XVI.

Note: In rendering a decision for renewal, the county board shall consider the past
performance of the school’s academics, finances, and operations in evaluating the
likelihood of the future success, along with future plan for improvement if any.

Countywide Charter Renewals/Material Revisions

Countywide Charter Renewals are governed by the standards and criteria of E.C. 47605.6
and apply to charters granted under E.C.47605.6.

If a County Board denies a petition for renewal of a countywide charter school
established under E.C. 47605.6, the petitioner may not elect to submit the petition for
renewal of the countywide charter school to the State Board of Education.

An approved Countywide Charter School that proposes to establish operations at
additional sites within the county must apply to the County Board for a material revision.
The charter school must notify the school districts where those additional sites will be
located. The Board will consider whether to approve the additional locations at a public
meeting held no sooner than 30 days after notification has been made to those school
districts.

Renewal Timeline/ Requirements

A. Any petition submitted to SCCOE shall start with the Notice of Intent (see BP
0420.4 Exhibitl)

B. In the spring of the 4" year of operation, the charter school will notify the SCCOE
Staff regarding the upcoming renewal of their charter.

C. The charter school shall submit its revised charter no sooner than October 1, of
the 4" year.

D. Once a petition for renewal is received, the same timeline as the petition review

process for a petition on an appeal from a district will be followed. A public
hearing shall take place no later than 30 days of submission and a final decision
shall be made within 60 days (or can be extended an additional 30 days with
written mutual agreement by the charter school and chartering authority.) For a
countywide charter, no later than 60 days after receiving a petition the County
Board shall hold a public hearing and render a decision within 90 days of receipt
of the petition (or can be extended an additional 30 days with written mutual
agreement by the charter school and chartering authority).

E. There is no appeal from non-renewal of a countywide charter to the State Board
of Education.

97



AR 0420.4

REVIEW OF CHARTER SCHOOL PETITIONS

Page 13

XVII. CHARTER PETITIONS THAT HAVE NOT BEEN RENEWED BY THE
SCHOOL DISTRICT - SUBMISSION TO THE COUNTY BOARD OF
EDUCATION

A.

When the governing board of a school district denies a charter school’s petition
for renewal, the charter school may submit a petition for renewal to the County
Board not later than 30 calendar days after the district governing board makes its
written factual findings.

1.

The County Board and the charter petitioner may extend this date by an
additional 30 days only by written mutual agreement. A petition for
renewal not submitted to the county board within this time shall be
considered denied with no further options for administrative appeal.

A petition for renewal, whether submitted to the County Board as the chartering
authority or on appeal from denial of the renewal petition by the local governing
board, shall be considered by the county office of education upon receipt of the
petition with all the requirements set forth in this subdivision.

1.

Documentation that the charter school meets at least one criteria specified
in E.C. 47607(b).

A copy of the renewal charter petition as denied by the local board,
including a reasonably comprehensive description of how the charter
school has met all new charter school requirements enacted into law after
the charter was originally granted or last renewed.

The signature requirement set forth in E.C. 47605 (a) is not applicable for
petition renewal.

When applicable, a copy of the governing board’s denial and supporting
written factual findings, if available.

A description of any changes to the renewal petition necessary to reflect
the County Board as the chartering agency.

When considering a petition for renewal, the County Board shall consider
the past performance of the school’s academics, finances, and operations
in evaluating the likelihood of the future success, along with future plans
for improvement if any.

The County Board may deny a petition for renewal of a charter school
only if the County Board makes written factual findings, specific to the
particular petition, setting forth specific facts to support one or more of the
grounds for denial set forth, as applicable, in E.C. 47605(b) and
47605.6(b), or failure to meet one of the criteria in E.C. 47607(b).

98



AR 0420.4

REVIEW OF CHARTER SCHOOL PETITIONS
Page 14

8. If within 60 days of a County Board’s receipt of a petition for renewal, the
County Board does not grant or deny the petition for the renewal of a
charter school, the charter school may submit a petition for renewal to the
State Board of Education (SBE).

9. The County Board and charter petitioner may extend this date by an
additional 30 days only by written mutual agreement.

XVIII. CHARTER PETITIONS THAT HAVE NOT BEEN RENEWED LOCALLY -
SUBMISSION TO THE STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION

XIX.

XX.

A

Charter School

When the County Board denies or takes no action on a charter school’s petition
for renewal, the charter school may submit a petition for renewal to the State
Board of Education.

Countywide Charter School

If the County Board denies a countywide charter’s request for renewal (Refer to
section XV: Countywide Charter Renewals/Material Revisions), the petitioner
may not appeal to the State Board of Education.

FAILING TO ACT ON CHARTER RENEWAL BY A DISTRICT GOVERNING
BOARD

If within 60 days of its receipt of a petition for renewal, a district governing board has not
made a written factual finding as mandated by E.C. 47605(b), the absence of written
factual findings shall be deemed an approval of the petition renewal.

The district governing board and charter petitioner may extend this date by an additional
30 days only by written mutual agreement.

OTHER CHARTER PROCEDURES

A

Material Revisions to an Approved Charter

A material revision is any revision made to the charter that has an impact on
budget, change in program or facility, and was not specified in the original
charter.

A material revision of the provisions of a charter petition may be made only with
the approval of the County Board. The County Board may inspect or observe any
part of the charter school at any time. (E.C. 47607 [a][1]).

All material amendments/revisions must contain a reasonably comprehensive
description of any new requirements of charter schools enacted into law after the
charter was originally granted or last renewed (E.C. 47607 [a][2]).

99



AR 0420.4
REVIEW OF CHARTER SCHOOL PETITIONS
Page 15

XXI.

1. The charter school shall submit a written request to the County Board
specifying the revised charter language. The County Board has the power
to approve the revision, and consideration of the revision is governed by
the standards and criteria in E.C. 47605 or 47605.6 for countywide
charters.

2. The County Board shall agenda the request for consideration of approval,
per usual procedures.

3. SCCOE staff shall review the requested material revision and shall
evaluate it pursuant to E.C. 47605 or 47605.6 for countywide charters.

SCCOE Staff shall determine if the material revision would be an unsound educational
program, if the revision would make the charter school demonstrably unlikely to succeed,
if a reasonably comprehensive description of the revision is provided, if budget
implications are adequate to the revision request, and if the material change is otherwise
lawful.

APPEALS OF CHARTER PETITIONS THAT HAVE BEEN PREVIOSLY
DENIED BY ADISTRICT

In considering a charter petition previously denied by a school district, the County Board
shall not limit the review to the reasons for denial stated by the school district, but shall
conduct a new review and findings and report said findings as stipulated in this
regulation.

A A charter school whose petition has been denied by the governing board of a
school district must be received by the County Board no later than 180 calendar
days after the denial. Any petition received more than 180 days after denial shall
not be acted upon by the County Board. [5 CCR 11967(a)]

B. When filing an appeal with the County Board for the establishment of a charter
school, petitioners shall be required to provide the following:

1. A complete copy of the charter petition as denied, including the signatures
required by E.C. 47605.

2. A copy of the school district’s governing board’s action of denial of the
petition (e.g. meeting minutes) and the governing board’s written factual
findings specific to the particular petition, as required by E.C. 47605(b).

3. A signed certification of compliance with applicable law.

100



AR 0420.4
REVIEW OF CHARTER SCHOOL PETITIONS
Page 16

XXILI.

4. An original charter petition and 15 copies of the charter petition with
appropriate changes making SCCOE the authorizing entity. The petition
shall include a description of any necessary changes to the petition to
reflect the County Board as the chartering entity. It is the responsibility of
the Petitioners to cross check paginations and to assure that page numbers
are legible and are printed in correct sequence.

5. Grade Level Limitations Statement: The petition shall include a statement
in reference to the grade levels that are served by the district that
originally denied it.

C. The County Board is required to hold a public hearing within 30 calendar days,
after officially receiving the petition during a regularly scheduled Board meeting.
The petition shall satisfy the signature requirements as required by E.C. 47605.
The purpose of the hearing is to determine the level of support for the proposed
charter school from the petitioners, teachers, other employees, parents/guardians,
and the public. The Board is not required to ask questions or make comments at
this time.

D. The County Board shall grant or deny the charter petition no later than 60 days
after receiving the complete charter petition. These dates may be extended 30
days if the petitioner(s) and the County Board agree to the extension.

The initial charter may be granted for a period not to exceed 5 years, and renewed one or
more times. Each renewal shall be for a period of 5 years. [E.C. 47607(a)(1)]

If the petition is denied, the petitioners may file an appeal for the establishment or
renewal of a charter school to the State Board of Education. [E.C. 47605(j)(1)] If the
County Board upholds a revocation of a charter school, the appeal reference is E.C.
47607(f)(3). Denial of countywide school petitions cannot be appealed to the State
Board. [E.C. 47605.6(K)]

If either the County Board or the State Board fails to act on a petition within 120 days of
receipt, the decision shall, thereafter, be subject to judicial review. [E.C. 47605(j)(4)]

APPEALS OF CHARTER SCHOOLS WHOSE CHARTERS HAVE BEEN
REVOKED

A school district charter whose charter has been revoked may appeal the revocation
decision within 30 days to the County Board. [E.C. 47607(f)(1)]

A A charter may be revoked by the granting authority if the authority shows
substantial evidence that the charter did any of the following: [E.C. 47607(c)]

1. Committed a material violation of any of the conditions, standards, or
procedures set forth in the charter.

101



AR 0420.4

REVIEW OF CHARTER SCHOOL PETITIONS

Page 17

2. Failed to meet or pursue any of the pupil outcomes identified in the
chapter.
3. Failed to meet generally accepted accounting principles, or engaged in

fiscal mismanagement.
4. Violated any provision of law.

Prior to revoking a charter, the chartering authority shall notify the charter school
of any violation listed above and give the school a reasonable opportunity to
remedy the violation, unless the chartering authority determines, in writing, that
the violation constitutes a severe and imminent threat to the health or safety of the
pupils. [E.C. 47607(d)]

The chartering authority shall provide a written notice of intent to revoke the
charter if, after the expiration of a reasonable time, the charter school failed to
remedy the violation. No later than 30 days after providing the written notice of
intent to revoke, the chartering authority shall hold a public hearing during a
regular board meeting on the issue of whether evidence exists to revoke the
charter. [E.C. 47607(e)]

No later than 30 days after the public hearing, or 60 days in the case of a
countywide charter school, unless both parties agree to a 30 day extension, the
chartering authority shall issue a final decision to revoke or decline to revoke. A
revocation notice shall include a written statement of the factual findings,
supported by substantial evidence specific to the charter school. [E.C. 47607(e)]

The County Board may reverse the revocation decision if the County Board
determines that the findings made by the chartering authority are not supported by
substantial evidence. The County Board may also review the process followed by
the district board to determine if the appropriate procedures were followed.

If the County Board does not issue a decision within 90 days of receipt or upholds
the revocation, the school district may appeal the reversal to the State Board of
Education. [E.C. 47607(f)(3)]

If the County Board revokes a charter for which it is the chartering authority, the
charter school may appeal the revocation decision within 30 days, to the State
Board. [E.C. 47607(g)] The exception is that a countywide charter school
revocation cannot be appealed to the State Board of Education. [E.C. 47605.6(k)]

If the State Board reverses the revocation on appeal, the agency that granted the
charter shall continue to be regarded as the chartering authority. [E.C. 47607(h)]

102



AR 0420.4
REVIEW OF CHARTER SCHOOL PETITIONS
Page 18

Legal Reference:

EDUCATION CODE

11967(a)(1-4); 42130; 42131; 47602(b); 47604(b); 47604.5; 47604.33(a); 47605; 47605(a-p);
47605.1(f); 47605.5; 47605.6; 47605.6(a); 47605.6(b); 7605.6(c); 47605.6(d); 47605.6(h);
47605.6(k); 47605.7; 47607; 47607 (a-h); 47607.5; 47611.5(b-c); 47613; 47615(a)(1-2); 51747.3;
52026; 52052(h)

CALIFORNIA CODE OF REGULATIONS

5 CCR 11967(a)(1-4)

STATUTES

Charter 781

Statutes of 1992

Approved:

103



LIST OF TEXTBOOKS

9/11/2018 Page 1

SUBJECT BOOK TITLE ISBN 10 Digit ISBN 13 digit Copyright D{Grade |Year Adopted
MATH

American Book Company CMR Algebra 9-12 |2006-07
American Book Company California Math Revised 19324100882 9-12  |2007-08
American Book Company California Math Review 978-1-932-41008-2 9-12  [2008-09
American Guidance Service Algebra 9-12 |2006-07
American Guidance Service Algebra Student Workbook 9-12  |2006-07
American Guidance Service Algebra Student Workbook Answer Key 9-12  |2006-07
American Guidance Service Algebra 2 Student Text 0785435433 978-0-785-43543-3 2004 9-12 2007-08
American Guidance Service Algebra 2 Teachers Edition 0785435441 978-0-785-43544-0 2004 9-12  |2007-08
American Guidance Service Algebra Teachers Edition 0785435689 978-0-785-43568-6 2004 9-12  |[2007-08
American Guidance Service Algebra 2 Student Workbook 9-12 |2006-07
American Guidance Service Algebra 2 Student Workbook Answer Key 9-12  |2006-07
American Guidance Service Basic Math Knowledge Advance 9-12  |2006-07
American Guidance Service Basic Math Skills Curriculum Class Set Revised 2003 Edition 0785429573 9-12  |[2007-08
American Guidance Service Basic Math Skills Revised 2003 Edition Student Texts 0785429522 9-12 2007-08
American Guidance Service Basic Math Skills Student Edition 0785429573 978-0-785-429524 2003 9-12 |2007-08
American Guidance Service Basic Math Skills Teacher Edition 0785429530 978-0-785-42953-1 2003 9-12 2007-08
American Guidance Service Basic Math Skills Student Workbook Answer Key 0785429565 978-0-785-42956-2 2003 9-12  |2007-08
American Guidance Service Consumer Math 978-0-785-42943-2 9-12 |2006-07
American Guidance Service Consumer Mathematics Teachers Edition 785429441 9-12  [2006-07
American Guidance Service Consumer Math Curriculum Class Set Revised 2003 Edition 0758429484 9-12 2007-08
American Guidance Service Consumer Mathematics Student Text Revised 0785429433 978-0-785-42948-7 2003 9-12 |2007-08
American Guidance Service Consumer Mathematics Student Workbook Answer Key 9-12 |2006-07
American Guidance Service Consumer Math Teacher Edition 978-0-785-42944-9 9-12 2010-11
American Guidance Service Geometry 0785438297 978-0-785-43829-8 2005 9-12  |2006-07
American Guidance Service Geometry Teacher Edition 9-12 |2006-07
American Guidance Service Geometry Student Workbook 0785438319 978-0-785-43831-1 9-12  |2006-07
American Guidance Service Geometry Student Workbook Answer Key 9-12 |2006-07
American Guidance Service Life Skills Mathematics 9-12  |[2006-07
American Guidance Service Math for the World of Work 9-12 2006-07
American Guidanc